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Company Award

ERIE

HONG KONG GREEN AWARDS 2011 - GREEN ERZBLEAR01M2EHERR
MANAGEMENT AWARD (LARGE CORPORATION) B (hERH)

GOLD AWARD T8’

Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited (“Chung Tai Printing”), a FEESEITRBB AT ZME AT —FKED
subsidiary of Neway Group Holdings Limited, has always emphasized Bl (B BRAR ([ KREDR) & 58 E
the importance of corporate social responsibilities and making TPEAGEERCECGER SRR
contribution to the society. It particularly focuses on environmental RIRFREREBZEHE L UREBM
protection and increasing awareness of green issues so as to B Pan o

demonstrate our corporate mission.

Chung Tai Printing obtained the Hong Kong Green Awards — Green RRENRIAA2011612 7 B8R [RRE#E

Management Award (Large Corporation) Gold Award in December & ] (Green Council) B BB BB FERE

2011. We have the honor to obtain the award by Green Council ZBHRRERE (DERR) 2L RME

second year. Through our green policies and practices, Chung Tai FESREREESE_FHBRIE FBL

Printing demonstrated corporate social responsibility and supported ERARBELER A ROBETRT BFEL

environmental protection to enlarge our core business value. ERTERIFRERE UEZBERMAOZL
BEEE-

s ", 0 M 2010
Hong Kong Awards

Groan

Certificate of Award

This cerfificate is awarded to
Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited

Green Management Award (Corporation)
Gold

Stgned on belralf of the

iR 75 BT

Ovganfner and Secreharind D of Ieswe: 16% Dieeeber 11
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®E
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On behalf of the board of

directors (the “Board”) of Neway

Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | would like to

present to the shareholders the .@.
results of the Company and

its subsidiaries (together, the

"Group”) for the year ended 31

March 2012.

TABRRPESEEEZRERLD
A ([x28 ) Esg ([EE])
ARREEXQFAREKHE QT
(B AEH)NBE-FT—=-F
ZR=t-BLEEZXE-

During the period, the Group recorded a loss due to the global
economic downturn, Reminbi appreciation, rising operating cost of
the printing business and the impairment loss in respect of goodwill
of the entertainment business. The printing industry is facing global
economic uncertainty as well as intensified competition. Despite
the challenges, the Group has devoted increased resources to
environmental protection during the year. As an advocate of green
business, Chung Tai Printing, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
has received the Green Management Award (Large Corporation) —
Gold Award in 2011 from Hong Kong Green Council.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

For the entertainment business, the loss was mainly attributed to
the impairment loss recognized in respect of goodwill. However,
the Group continued to utilize its established platform to seek more
opportunities to strengthen its unique brand name. During the period,
the Group produced a number of concerts, shows and dramas. In
addition, it, for the first time, expanded its artiste management
business from its base in Hong Kong to the market in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

Looking ahead, it is expected that the environment in which the
Group operates, especially the manufacturing sector, will remain
tough in the coming financial year, with increasing raw material price,
labor shortage in the PRC and rising wages. For the entertainment
business, the Group will continue to utilize its established platform
to seek more opportunities outside Hong Kong, especially speed
up expansion in the PRC market. We will keep abreast of market
changes and adopt prudent strategy to enhance our existing business
portfolio, achieve sustainable financial growth for the Group and
maximize the value of the shareholders. We will diversify our
business and strategically deploy resources in other businesses with
development potential.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my appreciation to all shareholders, investors, business
partners and staff for their support and dedication throughout the
year.

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 June 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year 2011/2012, the Group has taken several big steps to
broaden the business portfolio of both printing and entertainment
businesses. For the printing business, our new factory for domestic
sales has commenced operation and the Group has further adjusted
and strengthened the manpower devoted to the domestic market,
and has achieved an encouraging growth rate of domestic sales
as compared with last year. For the entertainment business, we
have started to expand our artiste management business from its
origin in Hong Kong to the PRC market, and have staged our first
drama in January 2012. Furthermore, we have explored several
good cooperation opportunities, which required more time for us to
consider and refine, with various entities in the PRC. All of these have
further strengthened the existing portfolio of the Group.

Printing business

The Group has devoted more resources to environmental protection
in the current year. Chung Tai Printing, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group was awarded the “Green Management Award (Large
Corporation) — Gold Award” by the Hong Kong Green Council in
December 2011 following the first “Green Purchaswi$e Award (Large
Corporation) — Gold Award” obtained in 2010.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

During the year, the global financial crisis has affected the number
of orders placed by our export sales customers, especially those
from American and European countries. Export sales decreased by
approximately 6.0% as compared with last year.

However, during the year, the Group continued to allocate more
resources to expand our PRC market, including acquiring more
multi-function printing machines to cope with the different needs
of various domestic customers and to forage for more potential
customers in different industries. Domestic sales has increased
significantly by 27.7% as compared with last year and accounted for
13.8% of total sales in the current year. Furthermore, the Group has
further strengthened the sales team of the printing business, and
has improved and cultivated the relationships with new, loyal and
potential customers.

FACRREMEBDFEANKE H O
WEEPTEZAERA LERKA
XERBONSE HOHEREF K
#)6.0% ©

R NEBRFERNEESIREZER
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B A 85 B B A F RIRIE I127.7% + AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Music and entertainment businesses

The Group has further reinforced and expanded its portfolio in the
entertainment sector by strengthening its song production, artiste
management, music concert, show businesses and exploring other
entertainment-related investments. Meanwhile, the Group has also
expanded its foothold in the PRC market by devoting more resources
to the promotion of our entertainment businesses in the PRC market.

In the current year, the Group has staged its first drama named “The
Liaisons” in January 2012 in cooperation with a famous Hong Kong
drama director, Mr. Mao Chun Fai, Fredric (“Mr. Mao”). The Liaisons
is a famous drama written by Mr. Mao and has been specially invited
to be rerun in Expo 2010 Shanghai China and other large cities, such
as Hong Kong, Beijing, and Shenzhen. This drama has received very
good comments from the media and audiences.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MZE R GR 2 7
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

The investment in PRC teleplays also showed significant achievements. RNEBHFHHERE ZHEINE B AK
According to the statistics by TV stations, the second teleplay was R-BEERAZHGTHFT EF_E
among the top 3 TV programs with the highest ratings within the REIERABREAN =K WREREE
broadcasting period. However, due to the delay in receiving the Z— oA ERERESTER IR
ratings reports from TV stations, their profits will be recorded in the WE - HEBENER-E—— /—F
financial year 2012/2013. —=—HBFEEAR-
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue and gross profit margin

For the year ended 31 March 2012, total revenue of the Group was
approximately HK$660.7 million (2011: HK$678.2 million) with gross
profit margin decreased to 15.9% (2011: 20.2%).

Printing business

Revenue from the printing business decreased slightly by 2.5% to
approximately HK$640.0 million during the year (2011: HK$656.5
million). The number of orders placed by our export sales customers
was affected by the global financial crisis during the year and export
sales decreased by approximately 6.0% to HK$551.6 million as
compared with last year. Such decrease was partially offset by the
increase in domestic sales of approximately 27.7% to approximately
HK$88.4 million (2011: HK$69.2 million) during the year. The
proportion of domestic sales derived from the PRC market increased
from 10.5% to 13.8% in the current year.

Besides, the gross profit margin decreased by 3.1% from 20.2% to
17.1% and a segment loss was incurred. The decrease in gross profit
margin and segment loss were mainly due to the following reasons: i)
the increase in material cost, ii) the increase in labor cost, which was
caused by the increase in minimum wages set by the PRC government
from RMB1,100 to RMB1,320 in July 2011 and further to RMB1,500
in February 2012, iii) the increase in rental and utility expenses
incurred by the newly-rented factory which has been put to use in the
current year, and iv) the increase in depreciation expenses attributed
to the newly-built staff quarters and warehouse and the leasehold
improvement of the newly-rented factory which have been put to use
in the current year.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MZE R GR 2 7
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

Music and entertainment businesses

Revenue from the music and entertainment businesses decreased by
4.9% to HK$20.7 million as compared with last year. The revenue
mainly consisted of income from concerts, shows and drama, artiste
management income, album distribution income and song licensing
income. The entertainment segment has suffered a significant loss
in the current year and such loss was mainly attributable to the
impairment loss recognized on goodwill, the amortization of record
masters and intangible assets, and the operating loss arising from a
concert organized during the year.

For the investment in two teleplays in the PRC, due to the delay
in receiving the ratings reports from TV stations, the profit will be
recorded in the next financial year.

In February 2012, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to dispose of the entire interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary
which holds an investment in a PRC associate engaging in cultural
and entertainment business, resulting in a gain on disposal. The
transaction is expected to be completed in the coming year.

INTEREST INCOME

Interest income amounted to approximately HK$4.9 million for the
year ended 31 March 2012, 23.4% lower than that for last year
(2011: HK$6.4 million). The decrease arose from the absence of
interest income from the Australian dollar fixed deposit, which was
converted by the Group into Hong Kong dollars last year.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution costs amounted to approximately HK$33.4
million for the year ended 31 March 2012, 11.7% higher than
that for last year (2011: HK$29.9 million). The increase was mainly
because of i) the increase in rental and utility expenses of the newly-
rented factory attributed to the sales and marketing department, ii)
the increase in staff cost due to increased headcount of the sales and
marketing department, and iii) the increase in transportation cost
attributable to domestic sales.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 18.1% to
approximately HK$91.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2012
(2011: HK$77.3 million). Such increase arose mainly from: i) the
increase in staff cost, which was mainly caused by the increase in
minimum wages set by the PRC government from RMB1,100 to
RMB1,320 in July 2011 and further to RMB1,500 in February 2012,
i) the rental and associated utility expenses of the newly-rented
factory which has been put to use in the current year to cope with
the business expansion of the printing business, iii) the increase in
government handling fee charged by the local government for all
processing factories situated in Shenzhen, and iv) the increase in
depreciation expenses of the newly-built staff quarters which have
been put to use in the current year.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Other gains and losses comprised the following major items:

ITHRRAX

22— —F=A=1+—HIFE"
1T B S 48 h1#918.1% &= £991,300,000
T (—F——4:77,300,000/% 7T ) °
THRAEBMEZHR  )PREBFRZ
T——F+ABRETIEHRARET, 100
THSEARK1320 AT ——
F-ABfASEARYE1,500T EBHE
T RS Bt - i) 2 P A BNl S 7 3 R i 72
RYRAEFERAFEAZTHE 2
KRR~ ARSI  iiiis 5 BUS BEAT
BARFRINZ A0 TR U ER 2 &5 7T
BEBIEMN ARV AREEZRASH
ZHEB IR ER BT

Ht s RER
Eft s REEBENTEEHEE

2012 2011
—E——F —E——%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHEx FHET
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains SNEE (F518) W F R (428) 11,704
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIZREE (4,830) (289)
Reversal of allowance for bad and RIZERERE
doubtful debts 20 3,717
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and  H&E¥E - BE &
equipment BBz W (EE) 585 (57)
Gain on disposal of film rights and & &R R R AR
related prepayment TET /I8 2 Wz - 3,647
Change in fair value of held-for-trading RIEEERAEZ
investments NEEZE (119) -
Total wmEt (4,772) 18,722
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

The decrease in net foreign exchange gain was mainly due to the
absence of exchange gain arising from the Australian dollar deposits
which has already been converted by the Group into Hong Kong
dollars before 31 March 2011. Besides, there was an absence of gain
on disposal of film rights in the previous year.

The increase in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts was made
for those amounts due from customers mainly located in European
countries that were long overdue as of 31 March 2012 and not yet
recovered as at the date of this report. The management considered
that the recoverability of the balances with these customers are in
doubt due to the current uncertainty of the European countries and
therefore, a provision was made during the year.

FINANCE COSTS

No significant finance cost was incurred during the year.

NET (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

For the financial year ended 31 March 2012, the Group recorded net
loss for the year of approximately HK$56.1 million (2011: net profit of
HK$46.9 million) and the net loss margin was 8.5% (2011: net profit
margin of 6.9%).

The loss for the year was mainly attributable to i) the decrease in
realized exchange gain from the Australian dollar fixed deposit of
approximately HK$11.7 million in this financial year as compared with
the last financial year, ii) the impairment loss recognized in respect
of goodwill of approximately HK$36.0 million, iii) the increase in
depreciation expenses associated with the newly-rented factory and
newly-built staff quarters and warehouse, which were put to use
during the year, iv) the provision for bad and doubtful debt made for
several overdue amounts from customers of approximately HK$4.8
million, v) the increase in government handling fee charged to all
processing factories situated in Shenzhen, and vi) the increase in
material costs, as well as higher labor costs which was mainly caused
by the increase in minimum wages set by the PRC government from
RMB1,100 to RMB1,320 in July 2011 and further to RMB1,500 in
February 2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The following table set out the Group's current ratio, quick ratio and
gearing ratio as at 31 March 2012 and 2011:

RBEE BXERRELEE

TEBIFEER-F——FR-F
——F A=+ —HZRHLE &

hEREEAGBLX:

Notes 2012 2011

&t —E-=fF —T——F
Current ratio MENLL R (i) 6.3 6.6
Quick ratio RELLE (ii) 5.2 5.6
Gearing ratio (%) BEBELRE®) (iii) 0.3 1.0
Notes: Bzt
(i) Current ratio is calculated by dividing the total current assets by the (i) BN L R IR IR F 4B B & R LA

total current liabilities as at the end of the year. BB EHE

(i) Quick ratio is calculated by dividing the difference between the total (ii) RELEDIREBEFRERDEERTEZ

current assets and inventories by the total current liabilities as at the
end of the year.

(iii) Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total bank borrowings by the
total equity and then multiplying it by 100%.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$283.4 million (31
March 2011: HK$325.3 million) and short-term bank borrowings of
approximately HK$2.6 million (31 March 2011: HK$8.6 million). The
Group still maintained a strong and healthy liquidity and gearing ratio
as compared with last year.

During the year, the Group has allocated more working capital and
financial resources to finance the expansion of the printing business.
The construction work of the warehouse has been commenced in
the last financial year and completed during this financial year so as
to divert the excess demand on the existing premises. A few printing
machines were acquired during the year to cope with the need of
both existing and potential customers. Therefore, the current and
quick ratios decreased to 6.3 and 5.2 respectively as at 31 March
2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

The Group generally finances its operation with internally-generated
cash flows and facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The Group continues to maintain a high level of operating cash
position, thus reflecting the strength of its operating performance.
Having considered the anticipated internally-generated funds and
available banking facilities, the Group has adequate resources to meet
its future capital expenditures and working capital requirements. The
Group will continue to follow a prudent policy in managing its cash
balances and maintain a strong and healthy liquidity level to ensure
that the Group is well positioned to take advantage of opportunities
of business growth.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Leveraging on the strong foothold of its printing business with a
sustainable and stable cash flow, the Group will dedicate its efforts
to the development of music and entertainment businesses and other
high potential projects in the PRC. The Group will constantly maintain
this two-pronged growth strategy with a view to providing steady
returns as well as fruitful growth for the shareholders.

Printing business

Customer and geographical diversification will still be the major
strategy to be carried out by the Group in the coming year. The Group
will re-allocate its resources to clients that have higher environmental
demand. A series of “Green” policies has been widely adopted
within the Group and will be indirectly beneficial to the Group in
the following major aspects: i) the Group will gain more business
opportunities to approach larger and high-end international brand
customers which require their printer to meet higher environmental
standard; ii) the Group can improve the production efficiency and
reduce the operating costs in the long run; and iii) the brand and the
corporate image of the Group among the competitors in the printing
industry will be promoted.

In view of the recent economic volatility in the global financial
market and the increasing cost of operation in the PRC, the Group
will prudently adjust its resources poured into overseas markets but
accelerate the development in the domestic market at the same time
and closely monitor the progress of collecting accounts receivables.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

With the acquisition of new machineries, the Group will provide more
new products and services to our existing loyal customers and other
potential customers in different industries. To cope with the increasing
cost of operation in the PRC market, the Group is adjusting the
purchasing strategy and is adopting a new cost tightening policy to
boost the production efficiency in the PRC factories. The management
will closely monitor and regularly evaluate the results of these new
policies, and make necessary adjustments in a timely manner.

The Group is optimistic about expanding and diversifying its customer
base and overcoming all difficulties in respect of uncertainties in the
global economy and cost pressure from the PRC in the coming year.

Music and entertainment business

As the five-year plan launched by the PRC government in 2011
designated the cultural and entertainment industry as one of the
major development areas in the PRC market, the Group has started to
expand its entertainment businesses previously based in Hong Kong,
in the PRC during this financial year and will allocate more resources
to the entertainment businesses in the PRC market in the coming year.
The Group is setting up a representative office in Guangzhou which is
the first step in the expansion of the music and artiste management
businesses in the PRC. The Group is also working on an establishment
in Beijing in order to further expand its representation in the PRC
market. Besides, the Group will continue to look for more artists with
high potential and produce more good songs to enrich the asset base
of the business. Furthermore, the Group will continue to introduce
more new elements into the entertainment business in order to
strengthen and enlarge its platform.

In addition, the Group is actively seeking cooperation opportunities
with other entertainment companies in the PRC and overseas,
including but not limited to working with PRC TV stations or
investors for the production of high quality teleplays. During the
year, the Group has successfully built up a strong network with other
companies which were interested and/or specified in the cultural
and entertainment industry in the PRC and may become our strong
business partners in the coming year. Furthermore, the Group will
continue to devote more resources to projects that enjoy more
reduction schemes offered by the PRC government so as to maximize
the return on its investment. The Group will broaden its revenue and
profit base patiently in a cautious manner and is optimistic about the
result.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

Other business opportunities

With a strong cash position, the Group is also actively exploring other
business opportunities to expand its existing portfolio. The Group will
provide more information to the existing shareholders and potential
investors in a timely manner when the business plans mature.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s sales and purchases were principally denominated in
Renminbi, HK dollars and US dollars. Except for Renminbi, there is no
significant fluctuation in the exchange rate between HK dollars and
US dollars throughout the year. The management will closely monitor
the foreign exchange risk for Renminbi and identify any significant
adverse impact of it to the PRC operations. The Group will consider
using appropriate hedging solutions, if required. For the financial
year ended 31 March 2012, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purpose and did not have any hedging
instruments outstanding as at 31 March 2012.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 March 2012, capital expenditure of the Group
for property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately
HK$59.4 million (2011: HK$64.3 million). Such addition arose from
the acquisition of machineries to meet current market demand and
expand customer base, as well as the construction cost incurred in the
construction of the warehouse to divert the excess demand on the
existing premises.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had made capital commitments of
approximately HK$23.2 million (31 March 2011: HK$25.3 million)
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment which had been
contracted for but had not been provided in the financial statements.
The Group did not make any capital commitments for the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment which had been authorized but had
not been contracted for in both years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
March 2012 (31 March 2011: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2012, the Group has pledged a leasehold building
with a carrying value of HK$30 million to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (31 March 2011: HK$31 million).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had approximately 2,800 full time
employees (31 March 2011: approximately 3,200). Total staff costs
including directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 March
2012 was approximately HK$147.3 million (2011: approximately
HK$136.0 million). The remuneration schemes are generally structured
with reference to market conditions and the qualifications of the
employees. The reward packages of the Group’s staff are normally
reviewed on an annual basis based on the staff's and the Group’s
performance. Apart from salary payments, other staff benefits include
contributions to retirement benefit scheme and medical insurance
for eligible employees. In-house and external training programs are
provided as and when required.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEEBRBE

The Board of the Company is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report in the Group's annual report for the year ended
31 March 2012.

The Company acknowledges the important role of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to the Company's
business, and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company's operations. The Board recognises that good corporate
governance practices are vital to maintain and promote shareholder
value and investor confidence and has adopted various measures to
ensure a high standard of corporate governance is maintained and
has put in place corporate governance practices to meet the code
provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
("CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”) that are considered to be
relevant to the Group and appropriate to the conduct and growth of
its business. The Company is committed to enhancing its corporate
governance practices and to reviewing its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that they align with the latest
development.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has complied with
most of the code provisions set out in the CG Code, save for certain
deviations from the code provisions which are explained in the
relevant paragraphs in this Report.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All directors
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company in the
attainment of the objective of creating value to shareholders. Every
director carries out his duty in good faith and in compliance with the
standards of applicable laws and regulations, and acts in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight members, consisting of
two executive directors, three non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors, and has in its composition a
balance of expertise, skills and experience necessary for independent
decision-making.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Board comprises the following directors as at the date of this
report:

Executive directors:
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren

Mr. WONG Sun Fat (member of Audit committee and
Remuneration committee)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. TSE Tin Tai

Mr. CHENG Chi Wai (Chairman of Remuneration committee and
member of Audit committee)

Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily (Chairman of Audit committee and
member of Remuneration Committee)

Alternate Director:
Mr. LAU Kam Cheong (alternate director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan)

The list of directors (by category) is disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, Chief Executive Officer, is the uncle of Mr. SUEK
Ka Lun, Ernie, Chairman. The detailed relationships among members
of the Board are disclosed under “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Executives” on pages 30 to 33.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The non-executive directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise and experiences to the Board. Through
participation in Board meetings and serving on Board committees, all
non-executive directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by
separate persons in order to preserve independence and a balanced
judgement of views. The Chairman of the Board, Mr. SUEK Ka Lun,
Ernie, is responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practices and is also
responsible for chairing the meetings and managing the operations
of the Board and ensuring that all major and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner. The Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, is responsible for running
the Company’s businesses and developing and implementing the
Group's strategic plans and business goals. The Board considers that
the respective responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are clear and distinctive and hence written terms thereof are
not necessary.

Though the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are uncle and
nephew, they consider issues and make decisions independently.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

Although the directors are not appointed for a specific term, all
directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation once
every three years and any new director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment pursuant to the
Company's Bye-laws.
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Corporate Governance Report
EREAHRSE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid down in the Company's Bye-laws. The Board as
a whole is responsible for reviewing the structure and composition
of the Board by reference to the business model of the Company,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination
and appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and
succession planning of directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors.

The Company has not adopted written terms of the directors’
nomination procedures. Where vacancies on the Board exist, the
Board will carry out the selection process.

Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

The directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training
programmes at the Company’s expense to update themselves with
legal and regulatory developments, and the business and market
changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefings and professional development to directors will be arranged
whenever necessary.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MZE R GR 2 7
22  Annual Report 2012 3

EEg (&)
ZERERES (&)

EXE7ZF BERLERZEFHEARNAK
REIZ AR -EEZEBE2EAN
AZEBBRABERNESTSZEBNR
M BREBITABIREMNEZEES
ZRF EREFZRITREEHE

ARFHEBY FFRTEFT 2B LI

ARRUY KRN ESIRAIEF 2 BHE(E
HoWESEHRER BEEREHTE
B2 -

EEZRBREERRE

ARBNMEBEF L F R & LiF
JIFRIE . — I EABAARR AT - LEER
RIAVERIOERBER AREBET
BE BEPEITERE - ARRTFER
EREFAEERUBSEB[N LIRS
REEF -



Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board and Board Committee Meetings
Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors apprised of the
latest development and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final version is open for directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Bye-laws contains provisions requiring directors to
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

Directors’ Attendance Records

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Board met 4 times, two
of which were regular Board meetings for reviewing and approving
the financial and operating performance of the Group. The Company
did not announce its quarterly results and hence did not consider the
holding of quarterly meetings as necessary.

EEg (#)
ESERESZERE;
BEFEEERTHRES
ARTHEFARAN GO RESS
HELTIRBM - ERAMESEE

mLEREeg® —ReEBTAEAM-

EEEXMHER—YEE TBEASE
EHgRNESeeR R BeeRdR
ZHELZRFHT2RES UEE
SRBARRAZRINER MM BGOR -
YTHEMBEMMEFHRE-BEFEREBNUE
ZHEAFER HUATRENETE
ZIBERTEBSMREEAB TR

NEWEBAECBEREFMEEZES
ZREEEERLHE SR HVR—
RENEERATHRAERHARTE
=EM MKRBREZZER - KRR
HEFERH-

ARRAR 2 REABRIEA G REER
BEEFIREFEMBEALHBEERKR
NBEZR5E FREFARERE

ROETTEFECEREBERIEEA
HA -

EFHELH

REBEEZFT——F=A=+—8HIF
E EFeQRTEOREH EPMRA
EZenBEMAMELRNERM KR EE
EEMBT2EHEFE - ARARALEN
HMEEEE AUHRATENBRITE

Ee&-

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 MZERER 2 7
Annual Report 2012 3



Corporate Governance Report

LEEREE
THE BOARD (Continued) EExg (E)
Board and Board Committee Meetings (Continued) EEEREESZESEE (8)
Directors’ Attendance Records (Continued) EEHEDLE (F)
The individual attendance record of each director at the meetings of UWTHEASEENHE T ——F=
the Board, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee during the A=+—HUIEFER LREFZ T
year ended 31 March 2012 is set out below: ZEaeNTNEEee% 228k
Attendance/Number of meetings
held during the tenure of directorship
EETACHERE SRR
Audit Remuneration
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee
Esps EXg BREEE SMEEE
Executive Directors BITES
- Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie —BEEBEE 4/4 N/A N/A
(Chairman) (/) T A T A
- Mr. SUEK Chai Hong —EBEEXAE 4/4 N/A N/A
(Chief Executive Officer) (7TB#a%) el T B
Non-Executive Directors *HTES
- Dr. NG Wai Kwan —REHEL 4/4 N/A N/A
TE A TERA
— Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren —FRIEM &£ 4/4 N/A N/A
TNE A NiE A
— Mr. WONG Sun Fat (member of Audit committee —E#E%E (ERZEE8K 4/4 212 1/1
and Remuneration committee) FWZE2KE)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYkGITES
— Mr. TSE Tin Tai —WRREE 4/4 N/A N/A
TNE A NiE A
— Mr. CHENG Chi Wai (Chairman of —HEEEE 4/4 212 17
Remuneration committee and (FWZE2FER
member of Audit committee) BERZEEMAE)
— Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily (Chairman of =) Do E e 4/4 2/2 11
Audit committee and member of (BRZEE2TER
Remuneration committee) FWEE2HKE)

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MZE R GR 2 7
24  Annual Report 2012 E 3



Corporate Governance Report
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry of all the directors of the Company, they
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during
the financial year ended 31 March 2012.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the "Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

DELEGATION

The Company has not formalized and adopted written terms on
the division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management. In practice, the Board takes responsibility for decision
making in all major matters of the Company including: the approval
and monitoring of all policy matters, the setting of objectives and
overall strategies, internal controls and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of
interests), appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to the senior executives.
The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by these senior executives and the Board has
the full support of them to discharge their responsibilities.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Board has established two committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference which are
posted on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk)
and of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and are available to
shareholders upon request.
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TREAHRSE

DELEGATION (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely
Messrs. CHENG Chi Wai (Chairman), LUI Lai Ping, Cecily and WONG
Sun Fat, the majority of them are independent non-executive
directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the executive directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee shall consult
the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer about their proposals
relating to the remuneration of the executive directors and have
access to professional advice at the Company’s expense, if necessary.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has not established a nomination committee at present.
The Board considers the determination of the appointment and
removal of directors to be the Board’s collective decision. The Board
will identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members
when necessary. The Board considers potential directorship based on
the candidate’s qualification, expertise, experience and knowledge as
well as the requirements under the Listing Rules.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of Financial
Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2012.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
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Corporate Governance Report

CEEARE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of Financial
Statements (Continued)

The management provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial information and position of the Company put to the
Board for approval.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Company’s
assets. The internal control system of the Group aims to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of the
Group. The senior management shall review and evaluate the control
process and monitor any risk factors on a regular basis and report to
the Audit Committee on any findings and measures to address the
variances and identified risks.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012.
Such review covered the financial, operational, compliance and risk
management aspects of the Group. The Board has also considered
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three non-executive directors,
Messrs. LUl Lai Ping, Cecily (Chairman), CHENG Chi Wai and WONG
Sun Fat, the majority of them are independent non-executive directors
(including one independent non-executive director who possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise). None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

o To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function
and external auditors before submission to the Board.

o To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

o To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met twice and
reviewed the Group’s annual results and annual report for the year
ended 31 March 2011 and interim results for the six months ended
30 September 2011. The Audit Committee has also reviewed with
the management the Group’s accounting policies and discussed
auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters of the
Group and reported to the Board on material issues, if any, and
made recommendations to the Board. It has also reviewed the work
performed and fees charged by the external auditors and made
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of external
auditors.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 31 March 2012
has also been reviewed by the Audit Committee. There is no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection and appointment of external
auditors.

External Auditor and Auditor’s Remuneration

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 46 to 47.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the remuneration paid to
the external auditor of the Company in respect of audit services and
non-audit services amounted to HK$1,400,000 and HK$150,000
respectively.
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TEEBRBE

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Group also recognises the importance of transparency and timely
disclosure of corporate information which enables shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior executives maintain
regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the Company’s developments. Investors may write directly
to the Company at the principal place of business in Hong Kong for
any inquiries. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Company encourages its shareholders to attend Annual General
Meetings to ensure a high level of accountability and for shareholders
to stay informed of the Group’s strategy and goals. External auditors,
the Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee or, in their absence, other members
of the respective committees, normally attend the annual general
meeting and other relevant shareholders’ meetings to answer
questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

The Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries
Limited, deals with shareholders’ questions on their shareholdings and
related share registration matters.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at a shareholders’ meeting will be taken
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk) and of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) after the shareholders’ meeting.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERSRITRAE ZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, aged 33, was appointed as chairman of
the Company since August 2009. He has been an executive director
of the Company since July 2004 and chief executive officer since
November 2007 until 31 August 2009. Mr. SUEK obtained an EMBA
degree and a master degree in marketing from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 2008 and 2003 respectively. He has 2 years of
experience in investment banking and subsequently moved on to
commercial sector and has been a director of a private company
for two years. Mr. SUEK possesses of sophisticated and professional
management experience and familiar with investment analysis. He
is responsible for monitoring the Group’s business development
and with ambition to search for business opportunities in China
market. Mr. SUEK is a director of Nitgen&Company Co. Ltd, a Korean
company listed on KOSDAQ. In addition, he is a committee member
of Hong Kong Art Development Council.

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is the son of Dr. NG Wai Yung, Angela, senior
executive and controlling shareholder of the Company, the nephew
of Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, executive director and chief executive officer
of the Company, and Dr. NG Wai Kwan, non-executive director of the
Company.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, aged 50, was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company since August 2009, he has been
the Company's executive director since 1992. Mr. SUEK obtained
a bachelor degree of Business Administration in Finance from York
University, Canada, he has more than 20 years of experience in
marketing and is responsible for running the Company’s businesses
and developing and implementing the Group’s strategic plans and
business goals.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, the
executive director and chairman of the Company, the brother-in-law
of Dr. NG Wai Yung, Angela, senior executive of the Company; both
of whom are also controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERSRITRAE ZEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. NG Wai Kwan, aged 62, was appointed as the Company’s
non-executive director in March 2007. Dr. NG holds an engineering
doctorate degree from the University of Warwick in U.K. Dr. NG
has over 20 years’ experience in procurement, logistic planning and
leadership development.

Dr. NG is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, executive director and
chairman of the Company.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi Warren, aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director in 2002 and re-designated as a
non-executive director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. CHAN
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has over 29 years of experience in finance and
management in several multinational corporations.

Mr. WONG Sun Fat, aged 56, is a non-executive director of the
Company, he was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company since December 1994 until August 2009. Mr.
WONG was re-designated as a non-executive director of the Company
in August 2009. He is now a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Hong Kong and has
over 30 years’ of experience in electronics products business and has
vast experience in manufacturing operations.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERSRITHRAE ZEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TSE Tin Tai, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2006. He holds a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree from York University, Canada and has
over 20 years' experience in sales and marketing field in information
technology related companies.

Mr. CHENG Chi Wai, aged 47, holds an EMBA degree and a
bachelor’s degree in accounting and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. He is also an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. CHENG has
more than 20 years’ experience in auditing, financial control and
corporate finance. Mr. CHENG previously worked in an international
accounting firm and held key finance positions in several companies
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily, aged 46, holds a master degree of science
in accountancy and a master degree in business administration.
She is also an affiliate member of the Association of International
Accountant. Ms. LUl has more than 15 years' experience in financial
management, financial accounting, human resources management
and company secretarial field. She is at present manager of Pioneer
Industrial Components (Hong Kong) Limited, overseeing the
company'’s financial and human resources management and company
secretarial affairs.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MZE R GR 2 7
32  Annual Report 2012 E

BYFHBTES

WARRELE  BFAR N _TT NFE
EEARRNRZBYIERITES - K1F
EMEANBTAETEIRE T84
REMBHEERARETHENTISH
& T{E#®I20%F ©

BEEEE RFA7m HETHRAEL
BEBBETSULSHELTEN BE
BB ARG BEGHMA
2 HIMERITRABRRGLEER
MAMERGZERG B -WINREBH
FEBHEMAeg s BEENZ
2 MRS R A E T E %A 8120
FREB-BALEBERN KBRS
AifTRNE THRM EmAREEEE
BAFSRAAL -

BEENLZ T BT FA SR 2R
EETEUNTHERBELEM KN
REFRgAMAEKEEEE - 5L
EMEER BB et ANEREER
NEMEEREEABISFLR KR
fEPioneer Industrial Components (Hong
Kong) LimitedZ #8312 + & B EEERZ A A)
ZHBRANEREERRAMWES
B o



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERSRITHRAE ZEE

ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mr. LAU Kam Cheong, aged 49, was appointed as alternate director
to Dr. NG Wai Kwan, non-executive director of the Company, in July
2008. He is a manager of Delight Source Limited. Mr. LAU joined the
Group in 2001. He holds a master degree in Business Administration
and a master degree in Professional Accounting from the Open
University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Chartered Institute of
Marketing in United Kingdom and has over 18 years of experience in
management, sales and marketing.

SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Dr. NG Wai Yung, Angela has over 30 years’ experience in label
and screen process printing business. She holds a master degree in
Business Administration from Macquarie University, Australia and a
Honorary doctor of philosophy degree in Business Management from
Burkes University, the British West Indies, United Kingdom. Dr. NG is
the President of Chung Tai Printing Company Limited and Chung Tai
Printing (China) Company Limited and also a senior executive of the
Company and she is responsible for the daily management of the
printing business.

Ms. NG Wai Chi has over 30 years of experience in label and
silkscreen printing. She is the Vice President of Chung Tai Printing
Company Limited and Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited
and she is responsible for the corporate social responsibility and
quality management of the Group.

Mr. WAN Kwok Leung, Nicholas is director of our various
companies of music and entertainment division, he was human
resources manager of Neway Karaoke Box for the period from 2001
to 2007 before being appointed as an executive director. Mr. WAN
has over 10 years' experience in the related fields of management
and holds a bachelor’s degree in human resources management from
Hong Kong Baptist University and a master’s of science degree of
Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Directors’ Report

EEERE

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other details of the subsidiaries and associate are set
out in notes 41 and 18 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
48.

No interim dividend of was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: HKO.10 cent).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment during the year
at an aggregate cost of approximately HK$59.4 million in order to
increase its production capacity. Details of this and other movements
during the year in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Company is set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2012, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders were approximately HK$530.9 million.
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Directors’ Report

EEERE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 132.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan (alternate director:
Mr. LAU Kam Cheong)
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi,
Warren
Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. TSE Tin Tai
Mr. CHENG Chi Wai
Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Chan Kwing Choi, Warren, Mr. Cheng Chi Wai, and Ms. Lui Lai Ping,
Cecily will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM")
of the Company. Retiring directors being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the AGM pursuant to Bye-law 87(2).
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director being proposed for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2012, the interests of the directors and their associates
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:

(i) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each
of the Company

EECRBEY

EERAEBRRBFASLEECE
EoEENEEIT L EAARIR—F
AT B A #E CEERERIN)
ZRBEL

ESEzZROREBRRN ER
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EHMBEATRARR R EBEEE 2
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E R EEPIEIEFEE 2B LMFT
BEEC BB EMBITAZERETES
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ZHEZIMT

(i) ZAATERHEEC.005EBTER
BzEa

Percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital
ordinary  of the Company

Name of director Capacity shares held HARRATE BT
EEHNA 54 BREZBERHE RAET DL
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie Other interests 3,713,200,000’ 36.43%
EmBiE H s
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong Beneficial owner 70,000,000 0.69%
EBELE EmEAA
Dr. NG Wai Kwan Beneficial owner 800,000 0.01%
RERELT E=BEAA
Note: /z/?ﬂ:? ;
1. These shares are beneficially owned by CNA Company Limited 1. ZEWRMHTHPACNA Company

("CNA") which in turn is beneficially owned by the CNA Trust,
a discretionary trust whose beneficiaries include Mr. SUEK Ka
Lun Ernie.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(ii) Long positions of shares in associated corporations

At 31 March 2012, CNA beneficially owned deferred non-
voting shares in the following subsidiaries of the Company:

ESZROREBAROER
(%)
(i) MEBEZEROGZHR

W-ZT——fF=A=+—H CNA
EXFAAARATIHBEARZ
BEREEETR:

Number and par value of

Name of subsidiary Name of owner deferred non-voting shares
MEBLRRE BEAE® EBREBELR2¥E REE
Chung Tai Management Limited CNA 2 shares of HK$1 each
PREEFRAQA 20 BRREETE T
Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited CNA 100 shares of HK$100 each

RRENR (B BR AR

Chung Tai Printing Company Limited CNA
PREIRBR A

Profit Link Investment Limited CNA
RFARKREEERAR AT
The Greatime Offset Printing Company, Limited CNA

FER A ENR B R A7)

The rights and restrictions of such deferred non-voting shares
are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 March 2012.

1000% =R EE100/8 7T

3,000 shares of HK$100 each
3,000/% - AR EI {10074 7T

2 shares of HK$1 each
20 ERREETE T

9,500 shares of HK$100 each
9,500/% - X EI & 100/% 7T

ZEBIREEBRTERMTS 2 R
Ko BRIl & 7Y A A B RS R R B A
41 o

R EXFEBEEN R_F——F=H
=B BESFARFIHEAL
KA A S B AT AT AR B A B 2 (] Bt
FARRAR O B RIS R

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 MZERER 2 7
Annual Report 2012 7



Directors’ Report

EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 March 2012, the interests or short positions of the substantial
shareholders (other than the directors of the Company) in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
were as follows:

FERR
RZE——F=ZA=Z+—HBH FERR
(KRBIZEEZHRIN REAAAIRRBRES
NEEIGEHE36RTFECTERRESA
MR Fracsr HIRBEES KB E KA E
XVELZE2 K35 BB /A B A AN 7 K Bk A2 B
2 A E IR D K AR IR 1 4 a3 B
T

Long Positions =y
Percentage of
the issued
share capital
Number of  of the Company
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held HARQT ST
RREH 54 RO A BABEDL
CNA Beneficial owner 3,713,200,0007 36.43%
EmA A
KF Suisse SA Trustee 3,713,200,0007 36.43%
ZFEA
David Henry Christopher Hill Interest in a controlled corporation 3,713,200,0007 36.43%
RIZESEE 2 s
Rebecca Ann Hill Interest of spouse 3,713,200,000%° 36.43%
fic (8 4 &
Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher Founder of trust 3,987,200,0007 39.11%
B BGEE £ BEFERIZA
Dr. NG Wai Yung By attribution 3,987,200,000° 39.11%
REAEL FEfL =
Notes: Bat -
1. CNA is beneficially owned by a discretionary trust. 1. CNAR — BT TSNS -
2. Out of these shares, 3,713,200,000 shares duplicate with those held 2. REZERRH - 3,713,200,00004 38 F1CNA
by CNA. BB 2R —#4R -
3. Spouse of Mr. David Henry Christopher Hill. 3. David Henry Christopher Hill 2 B {8 °
4. Out of these shares, 3,713,200,000 shares are beneficially owned by 4. REZER 5 - 3,713,200,0000% B3 CNA

CNA which in turn is beneficially owned by a discretionary trust set up
by Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, who is also one of the beneficiaries;
274,000,000 shares are beneficially owned by Dr. SUEK Chai Kit,
Christopher.

5. Spouse of Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, a substantial shareholder.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Directors including the non-executive directors
have considered the following continuing connected transactions:

Exempt continuing connected transactions
1. Sharing of office

Neway Entertainment Group entered into a licence agreement
with Neway Karaoke Box pursuant to which Neway Karaoke
Box agreed to grant a license to Neway Entertainment
Group to occupy and use certain areas at 15th Floor, Park-In
Commercial Centre, 56 Dundas Street, Mongkok, Kowloon,
Hong Kong (”Office”) at a license fee of HK$30,000 per
month for a term commencing 16 June 2009 and ending on
31 March 2012*.

* A renewal of this licence agreement was signed by Neway
Entertainment Group and Neway Karaoke Box on 1 April 2012
and it has been commencing 1 April 2012 and ending on 31
October 2013 and the license fee remains unchanged.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Exempt continuing connected transactions (Continued)

1.

40

Sharing of office (Continued)

Neway Entertainment Group is currently occupying the Office
as its head office. The license fee was determined after arm’s
length negotiation between the parties having regard to the
prevailing market rates of similar commercial properties in the
same vicinity.

Neway Karaoke Box is a company indirectly wholly-owned by
Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Provision of staff quarter

Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited, a directly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company has entered into a tenancy
agreement with Neway Power Limited in renting a residential
premises at Double Haven, 52 Ma Lok Path, Shatin, New
Territories as staff quarter at a monthly rental of HK$70,000
commencing from 1 December 2009 and ended on 31
October 2011. Neway Power Limited is a company, of which
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is one of the beneficial owners.

Chung Tai Printing (China) Limited has also entered into a
tenancy agreement with Pimo Group Limited in renting a
residential premises at House 21, Windsor Park, Phase Il, 1 Ma
Lok Path, Shatin, New Territories as staff quarter at a monthly
rental of HK$83,333 commencing 1 November 2011 for a two
years term. Pimo Group Limited is a company, of which Mr.
SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is one of the beneficial owners.

Sale of Goods

During the year, Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited
sold certain goods to a related company of which Dr. SUEK
Chai Kit, Christopher is one of the ultimate beneficial owners.

The above transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company. Since each of the respective
transactions is less than HK$1,000,000, they are exempted
from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions -
Provision of the promotion services and distribution of
licensed content

Neway Entertainment Group provides the promotion services to, and
distributing licensed content in the form of karaoke music videos to
the karaoke outlets operated by, Neway Karaoke Box Group. Such
transactions constitute continuing connected transaction for the
Company. A Master Agreement has been concluded with Neway
Karaoke Box to regulate the provision of the promotion services and
the distribution of licensed content.

Parties

(A) Neway Entertainment (for itself and on behalf of other
members of Neway Entertainment Group); and

(B) Neway Karaoke Box (for itself and on behalf of other members
of Neway Karaoke Box Group). Neway Karaoke Box is indirectly
wholly-owned by a discretionary trust for the benefits of
members of SUEK Family, and therefore, a connected person
of the Company.

Term

Commencing on 16 June 2009 and ending on 31 March 2012.

Promotion services

During the term of the Master Agreement, Neway Karaoke Box
Group may from time to time request Neway Entertainment Group to
provide promotion services (which may include interviews by media,
TV commercials, photo shooting, performance at public functions) to
be performed by the artistes managed from time to time by Neway
Entertainment Group on terms to be mutually agreed on a case by
case basis, such terms not being more favourable as those provided by
Neway Entertainment Group to independent third parties.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions -
Provision of the promotion services and distribution of
licensed content (Continued)

In return, Neway Entertainment Group charges Neway Karaoke Box
Group a service fee which is determined on a case by case basis based
on commercial negotiation making reference to the type of promotion
services to be provided, the working hours, skills and popularity
required of the artists. Neway Karaoke Box Group shall make payment
of the service fee within 30 days after the receipt of the debit note
issued by Neway Entertainment Group from time to time.

Distribution of licensed content

During the term of the Master Agreement, Neway Karaoke Box
Group may from time to time request Neway Entertainment Group
to distribute licensed content in the form of karaoke music videos to
the karaoke outlets operated by Neway Karaoke Box Group on terms
to be mutually agreed on a case by case basis, such terms not being
more favourable as those provided by Neway Entertainment Group to
independent third parties.

In return, Neway Entertainment Group charges Neway Karaoke Box
Group a license fee which is determined on a case by case basis based
on the number of karaoke music videos and the popularity required
of the artists. Neway Karaoke Box Group shall make payment of the
licence fee within 30 days after the receipt of the debit note issued by
Neway Entertainment Group from time to time.

During the year, the service fee for provision of promotion services
and the licensed fee for distribution of licensed content charged
by Neway Entertainment Group to Neway Karaoke Box Group are
HK$450,270 and HK$2,160,000 respectively totally HK$2,610,270.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions -
Provision of the promotion services and distribution of
licensed content (Continued)

The annual caps of the service fee payable by Neway Karaoke Box
Group for the provision of the promotion services and the licensed fee
for distribution of licensed content are set out as follows:

For the period from 26 June 2009 to
31 March 2010 HK$14,000,000

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HK$17,000,000

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HK$17,000,000

The cap amounts are determined by reference to, among other things,
historical figures of the services fees and licensed fee charged by
Neway Entertainment Group to Neway Karaoke Box Group and the
projected development and promotion plan of Neway Entertainment
Group and Neway Karaoke Box Group.

An announcement was published on 16 June 2009 regarding this
non-exempt continuing connected transactions in accordance with
the Listing Rules, the agreement was ended on 31 March 2012.

In addition, an announcement in relation to the entering of the
New Master Agreement for this non-exempt continuing connected
transactions between Neway Entertainment and Neway Karaoke Box
was made on 19 March 2012 and the proposed annual caps amounts
of the fee payable by Neway Karaoke Box Group for the provision of
the promotion services and the licensed fee for distribution of licensed
content for the three years ending 31 March 2015 were set out
therein.

The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
independent non-executive directors. The independent non-executive
directors have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company; (i) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing it on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions -
Provision of the promotion services and distribution of
licensed content (Continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the external auditor of the Company to perform certain
agreed-upon procedures in respect of these continuing connected
transactions of the Group. The auditor has reported its factual
findings to the Board that the continuing connected transactions (i)
have received the approval of the Board of the Company; (ii) have
been entered into in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company; (iii) have been entered in accordance with the terms of
the agreement governing the transaction; and (iv) have not exceeded
the cap amount for the year ended 31 March 2012 as set out in the
announcement on 16 June 2009.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the general staff of the Group is set
up by the management of the Group on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management of the
Company are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company applied
the principles of and complied with all the code provisions of, the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules save for certain deviations. Details of
the corporate governance practices are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 19 to 29.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2012.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s largest supplier accounted for 30% of total purchases
while the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 48% of total
purchases during the year.

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers
were accounted for 30% of total turnover.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have a
beneficial interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers during
the year.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

BBEREBE8M
ATES 3518

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF NEWAY GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 131,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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35/F One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong

BPESEZRERAF
(RERZEZME L FRLE])
KRR

EEDERENFISEEFINEHRE
EEERARAR ([E2A])REH
BRr (KB IEEE]) ZEETB®R
*x HeER _ZE——E£=/F=+—H
ZIREMBEARARREK BHEZALSF
Bzt rANlER GRARSEHR
MEABRERERET UREBESTR
R ERE M FRERE -

EENAREMBRRAEREZER

BERREZAAERBEALSHMAE
B 2 BFAETHRELEIR B R AIE
{5 2 TR AR TE R BLRE B B 1 A F 1 [ AR
MAZIEBHHRE REEESRRS
RREEMBHRRAVE 2 ABPEE -
ImE N FEBRNRIFRBERMER 2
BERERRM 2R HRE -

BB 2 B

BECEERREES 2E R H%F
FEMBRRFLER LREERE
NANEFIOREMEEIR R RS - Bt
AOMETEE b R ik - B F A B AR
HEZABRFEMEMA LR B SAEE
MEE - BEFREBESTMRSRM
ZEBRBEAETERZ TIF-RFE
AERKEZETERRBIL RS MATT
Bz NAERESAGMBHRRRES D
TFHEMEAHRRA -



Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2012
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 June 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE—FT——F=A=1+—HIFFE

2012 2011
—B-—C—fF —E——F
NOTES HKS$ HK$
Bt BT BT
Revenue g %5 6 660,686,628 678,246,186
Cost of sales 85 & KA (555,556,318) (541,383,041)
Gross profit EF 105,130,310 136,863,145
Interest income M EWA 4,912,962 6,381,458
Other income H A A 841,038 969,978
Selling and distribution expenses SHE M AR X (33,412,422) (29,945,830)
Administrative expenses TR (91,304,950) (77,257,957)
Other gains and losses H b zs M E1E 7 (4,772,492) 18,722,071
Finance costs B & AR 8 (230,822) (150,862)
Impairment loss recognised HEBERERZREERE
in respect of goodwill 19 (36,025,324) -
Share of loss of an associate JE(H —REE &N B E1E - (1,029,848)
(Loss) profit before taxation A AT (E1E) % (54,861,700) 54,552,155
Taxation charge TIE ST 11 (1,253,037) (7,667,244)
(Loss) profit for the year NE (EIE) % 12 (56,114,737) 46,884,911
Other comprehensive income: Efh2mEIEA :
Exchange differences arising on BREBINETSFIES
translation of foreign operations IV =R 1,676,611 6,498,780
Total comprehensive (expense) income ARERE (ZH) WA
for the year 1R (54,438,126) 53,383,691
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: LA T A T fE(h A4
(B8E)mA :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ ZSDN (55,937,575) 46,884,911
Non-controlling interests IR R (177,162) =
(56,114,737) 46,884,911
Total comprehensive (expense) income LATATEARFERE
for the year attributable to: (ZH) YA 48 %E -
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ ZEDN (54,260,964) 53,383,691
Non-controlling interests IR (177,162) =
(54,438,126) 53,383,691
(Loss) earnings per share Fh& (EE) &2
Basic E K 14 (0.55 HK cents &1l) 0.46 HK cents 711l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R T
At 31 March 2012
RZEFE——F=ZH=+—H

2012 2011
—E-=fF —T——F
NOTES HKS$ HK$
Kt BT BT
Non-current assets EMBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME  BER&E 15 255,964,630 225,671,259
Prepaid lease payments AR E IR 16 33,404,246 2,985,685
Deposits for land use rights T FERERT S 17 18,251,391 40,994,417
Investment in an associate R—REERA 2
K& 18 - 15,903,075
Goodwill & 19 - 36,025,324
Intangible assets BEEE 20 8,190,210 10,488,272
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 21 7,760,000 -
Deposits for investments K& & 22 23,664,100 9,024,152
Deposits for acquisition of property, Y2 - BB &
plant and equipment REZEFT® - 3,148,434
347,234,577 344,240,618
Current assets MENEE
Inventories and record masters FEREREHE 23 90,701,033 99,404,147
Held-for-trading investments RIEEEREA 24 839,850 -
Trade and other receivables, B 5 KkE R
prepayments and deposits FRIE - T RRIE R
Ha 25 138,215,776 182,676,606
Prepaid lease payments AT E IR 16 717,624 88,610
Amount due from a related company FEM—KEEE R F]
A 26 2,609,558 4,642,548
Tax recoverable Af Y [B] 74 38 4,098,651 423,309
Short-term bank deposits EHSRITER 27 160,747,370 185,946,032
Cash and cash equivalent RekBE2FE 27 122,604,029 139,380,053
520,533,891 612,561,305
Assets classified as held for sale DERARELEZEE 28 15,903,075 -
536,436,966 612,561,305
Current liabilities mBBE
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 I H fth fE < I8
N & RIA 29 78,407,320 80,105,210
Tax liabilities MIEBE 3,480,962 3,578,859
Bank borrowings RITEE 30 2,572,724 8,623,958
84,461,006 92,308,027
Liabilities associated with assets HEAOHARELNE 2
classified as held for sale BEAHE 2 BE 28 580,739 =
85,041,745 92,308,027
Net current assets MEEEFE 451,395,221 520,253,278
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B IR R

At 31 March 2012

R-F——#=H=+—H
2012 2011
—g-=% —2——F
NOTES HK$ HK$
KiaE BT BT
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERREEE 798,629,798 864,493,896
Non-current liability Fmea’E
Deferred taxation IEIERIE 31 12,385,888 13,618,314
Net assets BESFE 786,243,910 850,875,582
Capital and reserves BN
Share capital % Z< 32 50,967,728 50,967,728
Reserves ] 735,453,344 799,907,854
Total attributable to owners of KAREE AEGEEE
the Company 786,421,072 850,875,582
Non-controlling interests FEERR 2 (177,162) =
Total equity B 786,243,910 850,875,582

HNFASEEFINEZEAHBRE
PHEEEEeR _E——_—FA=-F++tH
BAERRETZE THATESEKERR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 48 to 131 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27
June 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

=

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie &= B
Chairman &

SUEK Chai Hong B & E
Director %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERBHX

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE—F——F=F=1+—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FARERAER
Deemed

contribution Capital Non-

Share Share  Put option froma  redemption  Translation Retained controlling
capital premium reserve  shareholder reserve reserve profits Total interests Total

AEAE Bf-4 e[|
e k&R B BRRzEM i EiGE REEH @t FERER @it
HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS
AT i BT o AT i B o BT B
At 1 April. 2010 R=5-25MmA-R 50,967,728 210949953  (19,561456) 19,561,456 62,400 40312489 506,412,220 808,704,790 - 808,704,790
Other comprehensive income AEEMRERA

for the year - - - - - 6,498,780 - 6,498,780 - 6,498,780
Profit or the year KEEH - . . . . - SO 68BN o BN
Total comprehensive income AERENALE

for the year - - - - - 6,498,780 46,884,911 53,383,691 - 53,383,691
Dividends paid BftRE - - - - - - (1212899 (11,212,899) - (11,212,899)
At 31 March 2011 K-%--%=f=1-A 50967,728 210949953 (19,561456)  19,56145% 62,400 46,811,269 542084232 850,875,582 - 850,875,582
Other comprehensive income REEMZARA

for the year - - - - - 1,676,611 - 1,676,611 - 1,676,611
Loss for the year KERR = - - - - - (SIS (SIS (76 (5611473])
Total comprehensive income RERERA () 4%

(expense) for the year - - - - - 1676611 (55937575 (54,260,964) (177,162) (54,438,126
Dividends paid BARE = = = = = - (10,193546)  (10,193,546) - (10,193 546)
Transfer to retained profits upon expiy = ——F+f—BEHz

of Put Option ended on 1July 2011 FABEEREEAS

RE&H - - 19,561,456 - - - (19,561,45) - - -
Recognition of shareholder contribution 13 B RIE R

upon extension of Put Option period ~ BRREEE

(Note 33) (Hi33) = - (14222018 14222,018 - - - - - -
At 31 March 2012 R=B--£=f=1-H 50967,728 210949953  (14,222,018) 33783474 62,400 48,487,880 456,391,655 786,421,072 (177,162) 786,243,910
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REHERERRK
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE—FT——F=A=1+—HIFFE

2012 2011
—E—C=F —T——F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REZEK
(Loss) profit before taxation BrFiAT (B4R ) Al (54,861,700) 54,552,155
Adjustments for: EEH T3 %
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts NIRBR B 4,830,374 289,456
Reversal of allowance for bad debts BB AR A (20,069) (3,717,703)
Share of loss of an associate JE{R—KEtE N F)E518 = 1,029,848
Write-down of inventories WO 7 & 657,883 55,622
Depreciation of property, ME - BERZETE
plant and equipment 30,923,066 28,953,939
Amortisation of intangible assets |y EEEH 2,298,062 2,298,062
Release of prepaid lease payments i bR TE T 7H & 50R 403,118 88,610
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BWE R
plant and equipment Rz (M) e (584,375) 57,313
Gain on disposal of film rights and H & % IRIE X AE
related prepayment T8~ FE 2 W ES = (3,647,173)
Amortisation of film rights 52 hiw e 42k 6 - 4,179,297
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill AEBRRZBAEESE 36,025,324 =
Dividend income % B U A (11,270) =
Interest expense AEXZH 230,822 150,862
Interest income 2 WA (4,912,962) (6,381,458)
Operating cash flows before movements in Rt EESEEHA 2
working capital KERS M= 14,978,273 77,908,830
Decrease (increase) in inventories and FERERH G
record masters B () 8,271,927 (5,871,899)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other B 5 R E b fE W FIE - TR
receivables, prepayments and deposits HIBERE] 2R (380) 34,960,660 (31,058,924)
Decrease in amount due from FEY— K BAE A Rl 5IR
a related company N 2,032,990 5,950,161
Increase in held-for-trading investments FHIEEE R E N (839,850) =
(Decrease) increase in trade and other B 5 K H i fE S FUE K&
payables and accruals FEFTFRIE R ) 38 0 (3,013,698) 12,366,045
Cash generated from operations REXBREEZR® 56,390,302 59,294,213
Dividend income AR B A 11,270 =
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBNEH (5,365,330) (8,472,016)
Overseas tax paid BB INELIE (953,425) (663,460)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXBRBRTFESR 50,082,817 50,158,737
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Acquisition of available-for-sale investments IR ATt H &SR & (7,760,000) =
Deposit paid for acquisition of land BT T ET 8 (8,664,749) -
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, ENKEME  HE K&
plant and equipment R 2 - (3.148,434)
Deposits paid for investments BENEER & (16,300,808) (9,024,152)
Recovery of deposit for an investment WERERT S 1,884,152 -
Placement of short term bank deposits FEREHEITER (537,549,309) (315,371,718)
Withdrawal of short term bank deposits IR HUAG BRSR1T1F 5K 562,747,971 423,216,505
Purchase of property, plant and equipment A - BB MR (56,359,227) (59,051,999)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME HEK
plant and equipment R FTS R IE 887,279 459,770
Proceeds from disposal of film rights and & =2 R E R AR RS
related prepayment TR BIE PR 15 RUE - 8,800,000
Interest received B U F 2 4,912,962 6,381,458
New loans granted EENER (55,684,455) (56,309,691)
Repayment of loan receivables BEEEKER 60,813,286 16,065,691
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REHERERRK
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE—FT——F=A=1+—HIFFE

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM BRETEE (FT3E) s
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEFEH (51,072,898) 12,017,430
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEEE
Repayment of bank import loans EEBRITAODER (33,364,479) (37,097,103)
New bank import loans raised FILRITAOER 27,313,245 38,628,259
Dividends paid BT E (10,193,546) (11,212,899)
Interest paid EARTHLE (230,822) (150,862)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEFEER S FE (16,475,602) (9,832,605)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN HEPREZEE (BL)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BN KR (17,465,683) 52,343,562
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHNzHREREESEE
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 139,380,053 85,569,068
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ERESEHTE
RATE CHANGES 689,659 1,467,423
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEASRBEESEE
AT END OF THE YEAR 122,604,029 139,380,053
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HERREEEEHRZ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS vy
Bank balances and cash RITEFENIRE 122,604,029 139,380,053
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MEMBHRRHE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_F—_—F=H=1—HIFE

1. GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in Corporate Information to the annual
report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities and other details of its subsidiaries and
associate are set out in notes 41 and 18 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised Standards, Amendments to Standards
and Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs"”) issued by

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRSs  Improvement to HKFRSs issued in

2010
HKAS 24 (as revised in Related party disclosures
2009)
Amendments to HK(IFRIC) Prepayments of a minimum
—INT 14 funding requirement
HK(IFRIC) — INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities

with equity instruments

The application of the new and revised Standards,
Amendments and Interpretations in the current year has
had no material effect on the amounts reported in these
consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BHRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE—FT——F=A=1+—HIFFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
Standards, Amendments to Standards or Interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 19 (as revised in
2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in
2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in
2011)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — INT 20

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009 — 2011 cycle 2

Disclosures — Transfers of financial
assets !

Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities 2

Financial instruments 3

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS
9 and transition disclosures 3

Consolidated financial statements 2
Joint arrangements 2

Disclosure of interests in
other entities 2
Fair value measurement 2

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income °
Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets #
Employee benefits 2

Separate financial statements 2

Investments in associates and
joint ventures 2

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities ©

Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine ?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MEMBHRRHE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_FE—_—F=—H=1—HIFE

2.

56

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the new and revised Standards, Amendments to Standards
or Interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. A cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the
following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Sales of albums are recognised when the albums are delivered
and the title has passed.

Artistes management fee income is recognised when the
services are provided.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Promotion income is recognised when the services are
provided.

Concerts and shows income is recognised on the completion
of the relevant concerts and shows.

Income from the licensing of the musical works is recognised
when the Group’s entitlement to such payments has been
established.

Deposits received from purchases prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest
income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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60

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the profit or loss.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decision of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment is classified as held for sale in which case it is
accounted for under HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for
sale and discontinued operations”. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’ consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and
the non-current asset is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met. At the date of classification of an
interest in an associate as held for sale, the Group ceases to
apply equity accounting to the results and assets and liabilities
of the associate. Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

On disposal of the non-current assets, any gain or loss
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the non-current assets) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the assets
are disposed of.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Record masters

Record masters represent the accumulated costs incurred
in the production of master tapes of relevant audio-visual
products at the end of the reporting period and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.
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64

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. In addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired. Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as and included
in profit or loss under the finance costs in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which
they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity (the translation reserve).

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits schemes,
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables, investments held for trading and available-
for-sale investments. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Income is
recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.

Investment held for trading

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Investment held for trading (Continued)

Investment held for trading is measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned in the financial assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investment.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
guoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables and deposits,
amount due from a related company, short-term bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When the trade receivables are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
accruals and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Put Option in relation to Neway Entertainment Limited

The settlement of put option which is made by receiving a
fixed amount of cash and delivering a fixed number of the
shares of Neway Entertainment Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, is accounted for as an equity instrument. The option
is measured at fair value on initial recognition and debited to
put option reserve.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Put Option in relation to Neway Entertainment Limited
(Continued)

Where the put option remains unexercised at the expiry date,
the balance stated in put option reserve will be transferred to
the retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss upon the expiration of put option.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
statement of financial position date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 March 2012, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
approximately HK$118,979,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$9,058,000) (2011: carrying amount
of approximately HK$117,459,000, net of allowance for
doubtful debts of approximately HK$4,232,000).

Estimated impairment of intangible assets and
goodwiill

Determining whether artiste contracts are impaired requires
an estimation of recoverable amount of each artiste. The
recoverable amount of the each artiste has been determined
using value in use calculation. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from each artiste over the contract period and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
The discount rate represents a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the contract for which the future cash flow estimates have
not been adjusted. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As
at 31 March 2012, the carrying amount of artiste contracts
is HK$2,872,578 (2011: HK$5,170,640). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 20.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of intangible assets and
goodwill (Continued)

Determining whether goodwill and trademark allocated to
cash generating unit (“CGU") of the music and entertainment
business are impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount of the music and entertainment business CGU. The
recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined as
higher of value in use calculation and fair value less costs to
sell. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
The discount rate represents a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU for which the future cash flow estimates have not
been adjusted. During the year ended 31 March 2012, the
management revised the estimated future cash flow due to
unsatisfactory performance of the CGU, an impairment loss
on goodwill of HK$36,025,324 (2011: nil) was recognised to
profit or loss. As at 31 March 2012, the carrying amount of
trademark is HK$5,317,632 (2011: HK$5,317,632). Details of
the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 19.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the relevant assets,
after taking into account their estimated residual value, if any.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expenses to be recorded during the year. The useful lives
are based on the Group's historical experience with similar
assets taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expenses for future periods are adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates. During
the year, the Group determined that the useful lives of the
property, plant and equipment should be remained constant
to that of prior years. Depreciation expense is approximately
HK$30,923,000 (2011: HK$28,954,000) for the year ended 31
March 2012.
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ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE—FT——F=A=1+—HIFFE

5.

78

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. @I E
Categories of financial instruments ERMITEZER
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables (including ER Kk EWRIE (B1E
cash and cash equivalents) BHERBREEE) 419,127,743 504,855,428
Held-for-trading investments FIEEERE 839,850 =
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 7,760,000 =
Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost BESH A AR 81,560,783 88,729,168

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investments, held-for-trading investments, trade and other
receivables and deposits, amount due from a related company,
short-term bank deposits, bank balances, trade and other
payables and accruals and bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BEr_—_FT—— =+ —HIFE
5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. =@ TH(H)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BREREEEEREEK
(Continued) (#&)
Market risk % E fE
() Currency risk () SIEE
Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign AEBEBETZHIWERQ A
currency sales and purchases, which expose the i’jﬁU\QI\ﬁ&EﬁEﬂ?‘?*%
Group to foreign currency risk. In addition, certain SN E B B AT INE
trade receivables, bank balances, short-term bank e oﬁt&\\’$’$l =3F A
deposits, trade payables and bank borrowings of }\Eﬁfﬁ x5 - HE RE T
the Group are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"), (HEEEEEETE 2 ER
United States dollars (“USD"), Japanese Yen (“JPY") B BB E SRR
and Euro (“EURQ"), the currencies other than the B RITER% - BHETE
functional currency of the respective group entities E=/ N “”%féﬁmlﬁﬁfﬁfﬂ
as disclosed in notes 25, 27, 29 and 30 respectively. B 5 RIRKEE25 27 ~ 29
Approximately 30% (2011: 28%) of the Group's sales &30&5@ o NEEE 4930% (
are denominated in currencies other than the functional —E——%:28% )2 HE
currency of the group entity making the sale, whilst NETHEZEBETEZ
almost 20% (2011; 20%) of costs are denominated FERE®EUIIN BB 55
in currencies other than the functional currency of the AL #920% (ZE——45F:
group entity’s functional currency. The Group currently 20% ) 2R A A B BB fE
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. RER.AIIN B BER -
However, management monitors foreign exchange Z]K%@Hﬁﬁjﬁﬁiﬁm%%ﬁ
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign HEEK - AT EREEER
currency exposure should the need arise. HNBE [ Faa - E*ﬁ_ﬁﬁ%ﬁ—; e
E R¥ R ENINE R
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency REEIINEGHECERE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities EREEBENRHREHEEZ
at the reporting date are approximately as follows: FREEBYIT
Assets Liabilities
BE =L
2012 2011 2012 2011
—2--f _T——% ZB-Zf _"T——F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
usD xT 48,174,000 83,448,000 3,329,000 8,624,000
RMB ARE 7,289,000 8,444,000 4,708,000 9,797,000
JPY H - - 242,000 342,000
EURO BT 752,000 819,000 - -
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HEr—F——

5.

80

FZA=1—HItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

()

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with USD,
the Group does not expect any significant movements
in the USD/HK$ exchange rates.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 10% (2011: 10%) increase and decrease in
HK$ against relevant foreign currencies (other than
USD) and all other variables were held constant.
10% (2011: 10%) is the sensitivity rate used and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items, and adjusts
their translation at the year end for a 10% (2011:
10%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates a decrease in post-tax loss
(2011: increase in post-tax profit) for the year where
HK$ strengthen 10% (2011: 10%) against foreign
currencies. For a 10% (2011: 10%) weakening of HK$
against foreign currencies, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the result for the year.

cRIAE (&)

BHEEREEEERBKE
(n\ﬁ)
TSR (&)
(i) .%Eﬂ (M)
BRRE D
EEEA/%EE—#/\%TETﬁfq
NEETEHEET BT E

2GR TEAR

TERFIAEBREB TR
E@ANE (TBiEET)H
BREEBEI0% (ZT——

£ :10% ) 2 HEE 21
B — ) H T B EET

HERENHER S
BESBRMAZHBRRE
EAE10% (ZE——F:
10% ) - BREES TR BIE
*%ﬁ%%ﬁ@%%ﬁa-
W EFRIZE R HHE10%
—E——F10%)EH
HBREFTUFAE - TXIE
FRBMEBSTHINERE
10% (ZE——F:10%)
ZBEBRTARFERIEZE
BEMRL (ZE2—F:
%m&mﬂﬁ%PM)ﬁ
IR INEEZE10% (=F
——F:10%)  HAFE
< HEEREEHEREEEER
Rz 72

Impact of Impact of Impact of
EURO JPY RMB
BTz g HEZEE AREz2E
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT AIT
2012 —E-C=fF
Decrease (increase) in AEEEBRS ()
loss for the year 63,000 (20,000) 216,000
2011 —ZT——F
(Decrease) increase in AREZE T Opd) 8
profit for the year (81,800) 34,200 135,300
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MEMBHRRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE T ——F=A=1+—HIFFE

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk
Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group was exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate loan receivables (see note 25
for details of the loan receivables) as at 31 March 2011.
This loan receivables is fully settled during the year
ended 31 March 2012.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk primarily relates to variable-rate bank deposits,
bank balances and bank borrowings. The Group has
not used any derivative instruments in order to mitigate
its exposure associated with fluctuations relating
to interest cash flows. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary actions when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure
to future cash flow risk on variable-rate bank balances
as a result of the change of market interest rate is
insignificant and thus variable-rate bank balances are
not included in the sensitivity analysis.

The impact on the Group's cash flow is due in part
to its sensitivity to interest rate which has been
determined based on the exposure to the variable-
rate bank deposits and bank borrowings. The analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of asset outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease
is used which represents management’s assessment of
the reasonable possible change in interest rates.

EMITA (&)
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5.

82

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(iir)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's post-tax loss (2011: post-tax profit) for the year
would decrease/increase (2011: increase/decrease) by
approximately HK$1,578,000 (2011: HK$1,773,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate bank deposits and
bank borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
held-for-trading investments and available-for-sale
investment as at 31 March 2012. The Group’s held-
for-trading investments have significant concentration
of price risk in Hong Kong stock market while the
available-for-sale investments have concentrated in
the Republic of Korea market. Management manages
the exposure by maintaining a portfolio of equity
investments with different risk profiles.

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis on available-for-sale investments
is performed as they are measured at cost less
impairment. The sensitivity analyses on held-for-trading
investments during the year ended 31 March 2012
have been determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the reporting date. For sensitivity analysis
purpose, the sensitivity rate considers at 10% in the
current period. If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 10% higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax loss
for the year would decrease/increase approximately by
HK$84,000 (2011: nil) as a result of the changes in fair
value of held-for-trading investments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRE

For the year ended 31 March 2012

HEr—F—— =F—HIFFEZE
5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, amount due from a related company, loan
receivables, short-term bank deposits and bank balances.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is the
carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk as
amount due from a related company is receivable from a
counterparty and loan receivable as at 31 March 2011 was
due from two counterparties, while these loan receivables
are fully settled during the year ended 31 March 2012. The
directors of the Company consider these counterparties
with good credit worthiness based on their past repayment
history and subsequent settlement. Other than these, there
is no significant concentration of credit risk in receivables as
the exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, management reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.
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5.

84

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

As at 31 March 2012, the Group has undiscounted cash flows
of approximately HK$2,597,000 (2011: HK$8,770,000) on
bank borrowings payable within one year. The carrying amount

of such bank borrowings is approximately HK$2,573,000
(2011: HK$8,624,000).

Except for bank borrowings as stated above, the directors
consider that liquidity risk is limited after considering the
future cash flows of the Group in the foreseeable future as
the Group has mainly non-interest bearing short-term liabilities
which are to be repaid within three months from the end of
the reporting period.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

Fair values

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices and ask prices respectively.

The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MEMBHRRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE T ——F=A=1+—HIFFE

6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold and services provided by the Group, less returns
and allowances during the year.

Segment revenue and results

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance is organised into two operating and reportable

BEEASEFARELE M

R A AR A% P I Ko FE M 2 5RIB CORUER
ERIFH) -

PEWEREE
FAARRIMITES (AIEELER
RE)RSE KMo EEREFGE
KEZERE D AMERZE KA
HEDBMAT

segments as follows:

(a) sales of printing products (“Printing”); and

(b) artistes management, production and distribution of
music albums and movies (“Music and entertainment”).

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results
by operating and reportable segment.

Revenue
W 25
For the year ended

BZ=B=1+-HILEE

(@) SHEEIRIESR (TEIRI]) ;

&

() BAEE BERETE
[E %R

LIERNER

g]) -

AEEREERAREDRE D
2 M EEDHTIAT

Segment (loss) profit
28 (FR) &
For the year ended

HEZE=B=1+-HILEE

31.3.2012 31.3.2011 31.3.2012 31.3.2011

—¥--f —F—-% Z=%-=fFf T —F

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

B B B BT

Printing Nl 639,983,055 656,471,530 (3,584,555) 41,482,653

Music and entertainment Ef PEE 20,703,573 21,774,656  (48,469,678) 1,598,977

Total KRy 660,686,628 678,246,186 (52,054,233) 43,081,630

Interest income FEWA 4,912,962 6,346,514

Unallocated corporate expenses Aot ESH (7,185,137)  (5,550,105)

Net foreign exchange (loss) gain OME (B518) a3 5 (427,711) 11,703,964

Share of loss of an associate B —XEE AR EE - (1,029,848)
Change in fair value of held-for-trading  #F{EEBEHRE 2 A F(E

investments HE) (118,851) =

Dividend income M 2 U A 11,270 -

(Loss) profit before taxation BRAT (518 & F (54,861,700) 54,552,155

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2S£ MERER 2 7

Annual Report 2012

85



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRE

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE—FT——F=A=1+—HIFFE

N2

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WEKRDTEER (&)
(Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) SHEKWBIRELS (8)
All of the segment revenue reported above is from external XSG ZRTAE S AWK R
customers. BINELEFE o
The accounting policies of the operating and reportable RSN A RE DB 2T REHE
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies MisE3FTHl AN &£ B 7 @ 5 B R #8
described in note 3. Segment (loss) profit represents the loss Blen$B (ER)BMEZEDHEE
incurred/profit earned by each segment without allocation 7R BEE 2R AR
of share of loss of an associate, certain interest income, net S EN—FBE A T EE &
foreign exchange (loss) gain, unallocated corporate expenses, TR B WA -~ SNE (EE) W= F
fair value change in held-for-trading investments and BHAOROELYE FHEEEKR
dividend income. This is the measure reported to the Group's B NEESZEGAEBILA o« gHE
management for the purpose of resource allocation and BoRRIFVTEMmMS - Wk ABRA
performance assessment. SEERERE I FTERLE
Segment assets and liabilities SHEEENEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities NEFILZKE N A HiE o5 fEE 5
by operating and reportable segment: Z2EENBEBESITWOT
Music and
Printing entertainment Consolidated
ED FRRIRG Foe)
HK$ HK$ HK$
BIT & TT BTT
As at 31 March 2012 R-E—_—F
=A=+—H
Segment assets DEEE 524,646,047 20,612,574 545,258,621
Other assets HMAE i 322,509,847
Assets classified as held for sale D AFEHEZEE 15,903,075
Consolidated assets HEBE 883,671,543
Segment liabilities DEEE 86,640,783 2,624,493 89,265,276
Other liabilities Hip & & 7,581,618
Liabilities associated with assets ~ EE 53 AIFIEHE Z
classified as held for sale BERHAzBE 580,739
Consolidated liabilities FEar 97,427,633
As at 31 March 2011 R-F——%F
=RA=+—H
Segment assets DB E 487,690,699 71,648,763 559,339,462
Investment in an associate R—FKBtE N7 2% E 15,903,075
Other assets HtEE 381,559,386
Consolidated assets RAEBE 956,801,923
Segment liabilities DEEIE 96,625,878 7,091,451 103,717,329
Other liabilities Hp & fE 2,209,012
Consolidated liabilities HERE 105,926,341
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE—ZF

6.

— A=+ —AIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERI-EER (&)
(Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEERAEE(E)
For the purposes of monitoring segments performances and BERSBEREEANEESE
allocating resources between segments: B
. all assets are allocated to operating and reportable o MR —FKEE AR Z2EKE
segments other than investment in an associate (R—E——EFE=HA=+—
(included as assets classified as held for sale as at 31 Hst A “*@%#—M’EH:}%Zﬁ
March 2012), deposits for investments, available-for- E) &2 nHHEE
sale investments, held-for-trading investments, certain HE - BIEEEHRE - BT
other receivables, short term bank deposits and cash HibpE U 008 B EASR 1T TF
and cash equivalents. KB RBREEEIN AT
BEEEIRELE R
/_-5/'\ *E\ ®
o all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable o M T H b e 0B N FE=T
segments other than certain other payables and HIE (PR _EBE——F=
accruals, some of which are classified as liabilities B=+—HEEAHESEA
associated with assets classified as held for sale as at 31 BEHLEEERM B
March 2012. BN FTERESSERE
KERAIRED -
Other segment information HithoBEER
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BFEr_—_F-_—_F=H=+—H
IEFE
Music and Segment
Printing entertainment total  Unallocated  Consolidated
Rl ERRERS yEEH RAE G
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Amounts included in the measure of ~ FHEABEEEHHT
segment results or segment assets: BERTAZEE:
Interest income MEBA - - - (4912,962)  (4,912,962)
Interest expenses MERR 230,822 - 230,822 - 230,822
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments ~ FE A7 & FIB 4 8 403,118 - 403,118 - 403,118
Depreciation of property, nE BERRENE
plant and equipment 30,886,610 36,456 30,923,066 - 30,923,066
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH - 2,298,062 2,298,062 - 2,298,062
Impairment recognised in respect of SR BAZFE
goodwill - 36,025,324 36,025,324 - 36,025,324
Write-down of inventories WAEE 657,883 - 657,883 - 657,883
Allowance for bad and RERRETE
doubtful debts, net 4,763,005 47,300 4,810,305 - 4,810,305
Additions to property, N BERREFRE
plant and equipment 59,022,241 371,347 59,399,588 - 59,399,588
Additions to deposits for investments  F&EFI &AM - - - 16,300,808 16,300,808
Additions to prepaid lease payments T EFIERMN 31,450,693 - 31,450,693 - 31,450,693
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BE-F——F=A=f—AULFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WEKRDTEER (&)

(Continued)

Other segment information (Continued) HttoBEER (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BEr-—FE——fF=-H=+—H

IFFE
Music and Segment
Printing entertainment total  Unallocated  Consolidated

R EERRE AEE AR g4
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AT AT AT AT BT

Amounts included in the measure of T EDBEERNEEER

segment results or segment assets: FTAZEE:
Interest income MEKA - - - (6,381,458)  (6,381,458)
Interest expenses MERR 150,862 - 150,862 - 150,862
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TR/ 7 & 778 % 34 88,610 - 88,610 - 88,610
Depreciation of property, nE BEREELNE
plant and equipment 28,953,939 - 28,953,939 - 28,953,939
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEESE - 2,298,062 2,298,062 - 2,298,062
Write-down of inventories Rz S 55,622 - 55,622 - 55,622
(Reversal of) allowance for bad and (B0 REEAETE
doubtful debts, net (3,717,703) 289,456 (3,428,247) - (3,428,247)
Additions to property, nE BERRERE
plant and equipment 64,296,428 31,468 64,327,896 - 64,327,896
Additions to deposits for investments & E:T &AM - - = 9,024,152 9,024,152
Additions to deposits for acquisition of ~ WEEMIE  BEKREL
property, plant and equipment HE! 3,148 434 - 3,148,434 = 3,148 434
Revenue from major products and services REFEERMERREzWE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its RTRAEEXRBEFEER R
major products and services: AR 7 2 W2 79 4 -
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
HKS$ HK$
BT o
Printing products Nl 2 & 639,983,055 656,471,530
Sales of albums HEBR 4,187,039 5,255,010
Artistes management fee income HEAEEERA 2,415,064 2,248,350
Concerts and shows income BIEE RFBEWA 9,168,266 5,060,404
Promotion income FEKRA 582,953 5,630,514
Income from the licensing of HRERFTIRA
the musical works 4,294,487 2,146,956
Other music and entertainment B RIR GRS
services 55,764 1,433,422
660,686,628 678,246,186
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MEMBHRRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE T ——F=A=1+—HIFFE

6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

The Group's income from printing operation is derived from
Hong Kong and the PRC. The music and entertainment
business are mainly carried out in Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue from external customers and information
about non-current assets by geographical location of the
customers and assets respectively are detailed below:

WmkoBEFR (&)

it EE R

25 B 3 5 EDV R 75 2 MR
ERRTE - SRRREEBEE
REBEE

AEBERBINBEP 2 W B
BRERBEECERDRRER
MREEZFREMRFIMT :

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
RENDEF 2 Wz FREBEE

2012 2011 2012 2011
~¥--Ff —F—% Z=®8--fF —TF
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT
Hong Kong ) 339,793,048 417,759,973 38,287,708 77,526,229
The PRC HE 179,970,576 128,909,101 301,186,869 266,714,389
Europe BN 48,501,474 57,042,883 - -
United States = 62,945,757 57,176,943 - -
Others Hit 29,475,773 17,357,286 = -
660,686,628 678,246,186 339,474,577 344,240,618

Note: Non-current assets exclude available-for-sale investments.

Information about major customers

There is no single customer contributing over 10% of total
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Included in the revenue of the Group was HK$69,026,000
attributable by a single customer from printing business
contributing over 10% of total revenue of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2011.

Kz ERBEENBBAHHERSE-

FEEFER
RBE-FT——_F=A=+—H
IHEFE HEE—XFaEERASE
RIS FBIB10% °

AEtFEFE rAEBEREFBE—
HERIERE—FFMEMRZ
69,026,000 8 ¢ ' (h A BB %
HBiB10% °
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ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BEr—F——F=F=1+—HIFE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. Httlh=mREE
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain AN (E51E ) Wt F 58 (427,711) 11,703,964
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, TEME HEREEZ
plant and equipment e (E58) 584,375 (57,313)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIZERE{H (4,830,374) (289,456)
Reversal of allowance for bad debts B o AR 20,069 3,717,703
Gain on disposal of film rights and HE R R RERAE@EE
related prepayment RFIE 2 W - 3,647,173
Change in fair value of held-for-trading #F{EEEHE A FEEH)
investments (118,851) -
(4,772,492) 18,722,071
8. FINANCE COSTS & LA
2012 2011
—E--F —E——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on: TR ZH &
Bank borrowings wholly AR —FRNBHERZ
repayable within one year RITEE 230,822 150,862
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ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE T ——F=A=1+—HIFFE

9.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EEM=
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 9 (2011: 11) LTABBERKBENFIZL(ZF
directors were as follows: ——F NNRB)EEZ2ME:
Alternate
Executive directors Non-executive directors director
HIES FHTES ERES
SUEK CHAN LAU
Ka Lun, SUEK ~ Kwing Choi, WONG NG TSE CHENG LUl Kam
Ernie  Chai Hong Warren SunFat  Wai Kwan Tin Tai Chi Wai Lai Ping Cheong Total
HER BEE R i REH #EE g E BN 458 g
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$
B B B B BT A B B B B
2012 “E2-CF
Fees ks = = 126,000 70,000 60,000 60,000 70,000 70,000 - 456,000
Other emoluments e
- Salaries and other benefits  ~F@REMER 2160000 1,260,000 - - - - - - 371750 3791750
- Contributions to retirement ~ —3R K {&A| T &I 3t
benefits schemes 12,000 12,000 - - - - - - 12,000 36,000
Total emoluments WewE 2,172,000 1,272,000 126,000 70,000 60,000 60,000 70,000 70,000 383,750 4,283,750
Alternate
Executive directors Non-executive directors director
HrES FHGES EEs
CHENG CHAN
SUEK LAU Chee Kwing LAU
Ka Lun, SUEK ~ Chin Hung, Juen, Choi, WONG NG TSE CHENG Lt Kam
Ernie  Chai Hong Edwin Patrick Warren Sunfat  WaiKwan Tin Tai Chi Wai Lai Ping Cheong Total
EER BEE AR gz28 BRIk Eifg REH #xE g5k EB% #i8 a3t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
B E #T B B B B B B B E7 #T
(Note) (Note)
(i) (i)
200 3%
Fees e = = = = 126,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 - 376,000
Other emoluments Hfple
- Salaries and other benefits ~ESRALRT 2,160,000 1,260,000 400,000 27069 o = = = o o 339353 4430045
- Contributions to retiement —RINERE R
benefits schemes 12,000 12,000 4,000 9,000 - - - - - - 12,000 49,000
Total emoluments Hets 2,172,000 1,272,000 404,000 279,692 126,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 351353 4,855,045

Note: Mr. CHENG Chee Juen, Patrick and Mr. LAU Chin Hung, Edwin
have been resigned as executive directors of the Company
with effect from 25 November 2010 and 18 August 2010

respectively.

No directors of the Company waived any emoluments in any
of the two years ended 31 March 2012.

Btk BEWRERARARES AR
ARAHTEE HAB-F—F
F+—A-+HEAR-F—FFN
A+ NBEER

B

E

——#%=RA=+—HI1t

MIEFE  SENABESNEL

o] B

\/o
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ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE T ——F=A=1+—HIFFE

10. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2011: two) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the

10. EEM S
EREBRALBESHEALF BWA
T —E WA ANARE
£ HEME 2 HBEHRN EX-

remaining individuals are as follows: H AT 2T
2012 2011
—g-—% —E——%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and other benefits %ﬁ’i\ R E A 4g K 2,795,667 1,829,477
Contributions to retirement RARAEF FT 2] 53R
benefits schemes 109,775 72,002
2,905,442 1,901,479
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZMSHBRLT :
2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——F
Number of Number of
employees employees
EBEAE B8 AEK
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T 2 3
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,000/ ;. &
2,000,000/ 7T 1 -
3 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office in any of the two years ended 31 March 2012.
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e M BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE T ——F=A=1+—HIFFE

11. TAXATION 1. HIE
2012 2011
—E—-F —T——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
The taxation charge comprises: BIAX HEE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEH
Charge for the year REZH 1,292,109 6,621,017
(Over)underprovision in prior years BEFE (BREEME)
BET R (953,161) 361,666
338,948 6,982,683
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R TSR
Charge for the year REZH 2,146,515 861,144
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREDRE - 113,526
2,146,515 974,670
Deferred tax credit (Note 37) REFR B B (HE31)
Current year RE (1,232,426) (290,109)
1,253,037 7,667,244

FERMSHRIORIEMEFE 2
ARG MIER E16.5%: H

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

REBE(REARKMBERERS
BOE) ([ (REREBRZE) 1R
(RERBPEAERGERS) - FE
I AR Z R B25% °

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulations of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.
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e M BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_F—_—F=—H=1—HIFE

11.

94

TAXATION (Continued)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of

11.

BiE (&)

FRELR

SEEREKRL

BB Al (Eﬁfi)mﬁ&ﬁ-&z&ﬁﬁﬂ

comprehensive income as follows: T
2012 2011
—E-—F —FT——%
HK$ HK$
BT B TT
(Loss) profit before taxation B AT (E518) im A (54,861,700) 54,552,155
Tax at the income tax rate of 16.5% LTS %E16.5%
(2011: 16.5%) T ——%F:165%)
FAEZHIA (9,052,181) 9,001,106
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ NA[ HFL B 2 2 Tt 75 o7 &
for tax purposes 7,495,671 919,679
Tax effect of income not taxable BEZRHBAZHRETE
for tax purposes (908,920) (3,883,855)
Tax effect of the tax losses not RERTIZEBEZ
recognised g2 3,941,813 785,230
(Over)underprovision in respect of T (BERE)
prior years BETE (953,161) 475,192
Effect of different tax rates of REMAEERLE 2
subsidiaries operating in other o= NGIE &N
jurisdictions HEFAH 2 E 729,815 766,387
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FABERERTB
previously not recognised BRzBHETE - (396,495)
Taxation for the year RNEFEHIE 1,253,037 7,667,244
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MEMBHRRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_F—_—F=—H=1—HIFE

12.

(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. AFE (B8) =R
2012 2011
—E—C—fF —E——%F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
(Loss) profit for the year has been FTEARE (EE) &
arrived at after charging (crediting): R (T A)
Amortisation of intangible assets A EEE 2,298,062 2,298,062
Auditor’s remuneration % SN B 5 1,786,000 1,400,600
Cost of inventories recognised NE B RBERZ
as an expense FEKA 533,004,459 527,885,321
Write-down of inventories MR EFEE (BEEEKRA)
(included in cost of sales) 657,883 55,622
Depreciation of property, Y BEREBITE
plant and equipment 30,923,066 28,953,939
Amortisation of prepaid lease TEN T EFRIB
payments 403,118 88,610
Amortisation of film rights 52 Fr R 5H - 4,179,297
Rental payments in respect of FHKEHEE T2
premises under operating leases Yl 12,339,894 7,073,972
Staff costs including directors’ BREEEMEe 2B THAE
emoluments
— Salaries, wages and other benefits & 18K
H b 18 H 146,367,912 134,800,668
— Contributions to retirement — R ORAE FIFT B 3K
benefits schemes 975,946 866,365
Total staff costs BB T KA 147,343,858 135,667,033
Dividend income & B A (11,270) -
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e M BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE T ——F=A=1+—HIFFE

13. DIVIDENDS

13. RE

2012 2011
—E—-F —T——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Dividends recognised as distribution FRNBRIED IR Z KR
during the year:
Interim dividends paid HE_ZT—F
for the year ended 31 March 2011 —A=+—HILEFE
— HKO0.03 cent per share EfFRERE
— & R%0.037 (L - 3,058,063
Final dividend paid HE-_T——F
for the year ended 31 March 2011 —A=+T—BLEE
— HKO0.10 cent per share EIRARE
— & RR0.108 L 10,193,546 -
Final dividend paid HE_ZT—FTF
for the year ended 31 March 2010 “A=+—HLFE
— HKO0.08 cent per share ERARERE
— & [%0.087 L - 8,154,836
10,193,546 11,212,899

The directors did not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: HKO.10
cent).
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e M BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BEr—F——F=F=1+—HIFE

14. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year is
based on the following data:

14. R (BFR)EBF

RERRBHFEBARGEERER
(B18) BNRATEURAE

2012 2011
—EF-=F —F——%
HKS HKS$
BT B TT
(Loss) earnings for the purposes of ATEEREAR (FE) B
basic (loss) earnings per share 2 (E18) &R (55,937,575) 46,884,911
2012 2011
—E——fF —ZT——F
Number of shares RHEE
Number of shares in issue for the FTEERERN (FE) &R
purpose of basic (loss) earnings Z B BEITIRE
per share 10,193,545,600 10,193,545,600

No separate diluted (loss) earnings per share information has
been presented as there were no potential ordinary shares
outstanding for both years.

P I flE 4R R A I B B AT RS 2
BELBE BB 25|88
g (B8 BNEFR -
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ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_F—_—F=—H=1—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. M%E BERKE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Machinery
Construction land and Leasehold office and Motor
in progress buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
BHLHR BR-%ER
ERIE Br HENEREE BAERE BERRE RE By
HKS HK$ HKS HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT B
CosT HAE
At 1 April 2010 K=Z-ZFNA-A 8263122 113,789,787 43,221,560 35,026,130 461,010,674 11,787,026 673,098,299
Exchange adjustments EHAE 371,742 1,799,068 51,775 1,424,370 1,853,757 57,359 5,558,071
Additions WE 18,085,669 19,336,899 13,599,209 4,032,339 8,098,667 1,175,113 64,327,89
Disposals HE - - - - (730,000) - (730,000)
At 31 March 2011 T——4#-fA=t-H 26720533 134925754 56,872,544 40,482,839 470,233,098 13,019,498 742,254,266
Exchange adjustments EAE 268,414 1,531,466 160,582 998,392 1,385,641 60,305 4,404,800
Transfer S (38,232,468) 37,657,370 356,981 152,941 65,176 - -
Additions WE 25,033,667 - 3,905,985 2,648,451 25,357,152 2,454,333 59,399,588
Disposals HE - - - (254,295) - (1,984,917) (2,239.212)
At 31 March 2012 R=Z-—§=f=1+-H 13,790,146 174,114,590 61,296,092 44028328 497,041,067 13549219 803,819,442
DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2010 - 35,686,118 36,423,867 34418585 368,936,353 9,599,431 485,064,354
Exchange adjustment EHAE - 734,688 41,921 1,240,876 721,159 38,987 2,777,631
Provided for the year FREE - 3,365,505 504,299 976,903 23,522,29 584,936 28,953,939
Eliminated on disposals i E 5 - - - - (212,917) - (212,917)
At 31 March 2011 RZE-——%=A=1+-H - 39,786,311 36,970,087 36,636,364 392,966,891 10223354 516,583,007
Exchange adjustment B AR - 499,623 64,640 796,895 890,719 33,170 2,285,047
Provided for the year FhiE - 4,150,045 4,266,855 1,333,881 20,197,577 974,708 30,923,066
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - - - (237,29) - (1,699,012) (1,936,308)
At 31 March 2012 W=E-—#=f=1+-AR - 44,435,979 41,301,582 38,529,844 414,055,187 9532220 547,854,812
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2012 W=Z-—f=f=1+-AH 13,790,146 129,678,611 19,994,510 5,498,484 82,985,880 4016999 255,964,630
At 31 March 2011 R=E——F=f=1+-H 26,720,533 95,139,443 19,902,457 3,846,475 77,266,207 2,796,144 225,671,259

Neway Group Holdings Limited f £ &Mz R ER D 7

98 Annual Report 2012 F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MEMBHRRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_F—_—F=—H=1—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

15.

Y- MERHRE (FE)

bz - BB MERERRE ZITE
TRANATFHERTRERE

annum: AESHE
Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the shorter of the lease THA T A EIR 530
terms or 30 — 50 years REF 2509 (LA
RERE)
Leasehold improvements 12.5% - 20% HEYHFEE 12.5% - 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office  10% — 25% R EBR 10% - 25%
equipment WRERME
Machinery and equipment 10% — 25% e 23 K 5k s 10% — 25%
Motor vehicles 25% RE 25%
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
The carrying values of leasehold PN T RIEF 2
land and buildings shown above FREE B
comprise:
Leasehold land and buildings in Hong i 72 % 7 3 LA F B 7H 49
Kong under medium-term leases BAH ALY L MEF 30,048,637 30,981,165
Buildings in the PRC under iz 7 H BN LA A BBAE 49
medium-term leases REZET 99,629,974 64,158,278
129,678,611 95,139,443

Property, plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying
value of HK$30,048,637 (2011: HK$30,981,165) have been
pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group.

BRI (B A 530,048,637/ T 29
¥ BEREREBE(ZZT——4:
30,981,1658 L) E R FiR1T 1E
ABAEEERE-METHREZ
A o
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2012

EF

16.

17.

—E - F=H=1—HIFE

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FEEERIE
2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
The Group's prepaid lease AEEZBNEERE
payments comprise: 2ECE
Medium-term leasehold land LA R B3P AR R R 49
in the PRC Az 34,121,870 3,074,295
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BREAHTAR -
Non-current asset FERBEE 33,404,246 2,985,685
Current asset mEEE 717,624 88,610
34,121,870 3,074,295
During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group received Bz -T2 —-—H#=ZA=1+—H
a land use right certificate from the PRC local government IFEE - ANEBEEES R H#H K
amounting to HK$31,450,693. Upon the receipt of certificate, MEHz THERAES 28R
such amount is transfer from deposits for land use rights to 31,450,693/ 7T ° I EZ T 3(F
prepaid lease payments. R#ERE EHESEE AT MR
BRI eEREEMEERE-
The leasehold land is charged to consolidated statement MO T IEEREENF A
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the HEHNEGZEE2EB SRR -
remaining term of the leases.
DEPOSITS FOR LAND USE RIGHTS 17. TifERAET £

Deposits of approximately HK$18,251,000 (2011:
HK$40,994,000) were paid for land use rights situated in the
PRC to the PRC local government. During the year ended
31 March 2012, the Group additionally paid approximately
HK$8,665,000 (2011: nil) as deposits. During the year ended
31 March 2012, the Group received a land use right certificate
from the PRC local government amounting to HK$31,450,693
and such amount is transferred to prepaid lease payments.
The completion of the purchases is pending for receiving the
land use right certificates, the dates from which the Group
is entitled to exercise its right to use the land, as such, the
amounts paid for the land use rights are recorded as deposits
at the end of the reporting period.
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MEMBHRRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_F—_—F=—H=1—HIFE

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

2012 2011
—E—_ —E——4F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Cost of investment in an unlisted R—RIELMHEQRZ
associate & KA = 18,629,400
Share of post-acquisition losses and FEME BRI E R
other comprehensive expenses, Hi 2wk
net of dividends received k% B W B = (2,726,325)
- 15,903,075

As at 31 March 2012 and 2011, the Group had interest in the
following associate:

R-FB-——FR-FT——F=A
=t+—B AKERATBERT
hER L

Proportion

of nominal
value of
issued capital/

Form of Principal registered Proportion of
business Place of place of Class of capital held by voting Principal
Name of entity structure incorporation  operation share held the Group power held activity
AEBE
BRAIRE/
A RAE i
BEREH ABEBRR HEMBUHE FEEXGE  TRROER EE LA REELH FEXK
EL IR LS Incorporated ~ The PRC The PRC Ordinary 30% 30%  Investment holding
ARAR
("EMNHE")
EL IR LS =E HE HE B 30% 30% HREER
ARAR
(TERAHE])

The financial year end date of ##k /L8875 is 31 December. For
the purpose of applying the equity method of accounting, the
consolidated financial statements of FE#L8& for the year
ended 31 March 2011 have been prepared by the directors
of the Company. The sub-group headed by =M NEEFEF is
principally engaged in cultural and entertainment business in
the PRC.

EMNBECTREFEFERS
T-A=1+—H REMAEDRS:
B ARAEFCREENNLEE
BE_T——F=A=t—H81L
FEZGEEMHE]ME - AEMNE
ERELTEEIZERARSE
AL M IRGE K 7 o
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e M BRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2012

B —F——aF=H=+—HIFE
18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, Brilliant Wise
International Limited (“BWIL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, signed a sale and purchase agreement to
dispose of its entire equity interest in Citicorp Development
Limited (“Citicorp”) as disclosed in note 28. Citicorp has
30% equity interest in BEAMILIEHZE. As at 31 March 2012,
investment in an associate have been reclassified as assets held
for sale.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
associate during the period from 1 April 2011 to 21 July 2011
(date of reclassification as assets held for sale) and the year
ended 31 March 2012 and 2011 is set out below:

18.

R—FEEQTZERE
()
HE_—_TE——_HF#=ZH=+—
ALEEE -AQARIZ2EMEBA
alBrilliant Wise International
Limited ([BWIL])#E] —HEE
i HEERBSZERER AT
(lR®m) 22l AER (R H
F28FTHEER) c IR EMNEHE
EENKR AR - N T — =
FZA=+—H8 R —REERT
I :éfai%ﬁ/‘*ﬁﬁ?%{’ﬁﬁﬁz

BT —FNONA-HBHEE_F
—— LA+ B (HELE
ZEEEHRBEH) FHRE R
E-T-——HhZT——F=H
=t+—RLFE FRAEERE
REZHHERBLESHSIOT :

2012 2011
—E-—fF T
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Total assets BEMEE 60,267,950 60,267,950
Total liabilities AEHERE (7,257,700) (7,257,700)
Net assets BESE 53,010,250 53,010,250
Group's share of net assets of REBEEGE—FREBEAR
an associate ZEEFE 15,903,075 15,903,075
Revenue g %5 - -
Loss for the year REEEE - (3,432,826)
Group's share of loss and other FRAREEEGE K
comprehensive income of A=/ ) =D
an associate for the year HEib2mik A - (1,029,848)
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19. GOODWILL 19. B8
HK$
BT
CARRYING VALUES RRTEE
At 1 April 2010 and 31 March 2011 RZE—ZTFMNA—AR
—E——F=H=+—H 36,025,324

Impairment recognised in profit or loss A Bz MR 2 i E

(36,025,324)

At 31 March 2012 R-E——F#=A=+—H

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and
trademark included in intangible assets (note 20) have been
allocated to the CGU of music and entertainment business.
During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group failed
in achieving the previous budgeted results of music and
entertainment business due to unsatisfying income generated
from sales of albums and concerts and shows income in the
second half of the year ended 31 March 2012. In view of
this, management re-estimated the cash flow projections
of the CGU, taking into account the actual performance in
current year as well as the future prospect from the CGU.
The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation, which approximates
to the fair value less costs to sell. The calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-years period and discount rate of
22.5% (2011: 22.5%). The cash flows beyond the 5-years
period are extrapolated having a steady 2% (2011: 2%)
growth rate. The growth rate is based on the budgeted growth
rate, which is determined by management’s expectations for
the market development, and does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key
assumption of the value in use calculation is the budgeted
cash inflow/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin on respective products and services from the CGU,
such estimations are based on the past performance.

As a result of the re-estimation, the recoverable amount of the
CGU is estimated to be less than the carrying amounts (before
impairment) of goodwill and trademark and an impairment
loss of HK$36,025,324 (2011: nil) in respect of goodwill is
recognised to profit or loss and no impairment is allocated to
trademark during the year ended 31 March 2012.

MREARATS HEREFEE
E (K320 2B E s RES
BNIRB L 7 GEEBN-
REBEE-_ZT——F=A=+—H
HFEE BRERHENL %
MRBRAREEZE T ——F=
A=+—HIEFETH+FMEL
ZWARAE AN B 4 [ pR
XA ERNRATEE 2 %£4E-
BEAL EBREENHERSE
FEUZRERETER  EFTK
ReELEBENUZAFTFEERRR
ARARRATR 2R EEESN
AWEEBEEREFAEEE
75 (BT EREEKAEE)
EBE ZitEAAFERURERE
EMc AT BBEERELE
HEREHEA  LAKk225% (=%
——F 1 225% )2 ER-AF
BN Z IR REANEA2% (=
T——F2%)2BTHEEXRME
B ZIEERTIUEREEBYH TS
BRoTEHMERE BT HEAER
TEFHRPEER 2 EEER
REEE - FREBEFERECH
tEEREBARESRA S RETE
B ERERNATRRAKSEM
HEReELENSHEERN
PRIETEEHERBREFNE-

BEFETZEFHE BeES
Brz Bl & B EE O RE
BLREZZEREE CRER) &
EREBE_TE——F=A=+—
AIEFEZEEPRRAHERE
£574836,025,324B T (Z & — —
gfﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%QMW
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BE T ——F=A=1+—HIFFE

19.

20.

GOODWILL (Continued) 19. & (&)
In the assessment of the recoverable amount of the CGU, EEEBNIIGRESELEN 2T
management did not consider the Group's right to exercise the W el ¢ EER WEEEAERTTE
put option to sell entire equity interest in Neway Entertainment Rom HAsE - LAZ17{# 865,000,000
Limited at an exercise price of HK$65,000,000 to Dr. SUEK 75 7T 5 &5 Neway Entertainment
Chai Kit, Christopher, a shareholder with significant influence Limited % 2B AR A1 25 T B B (4 15
over the Company. Details of the put option are disclosed in T (AAEARRABITFEEATE N
note 33. The put option is granted to the Company at zero ZREER) ZRER| o ROL HAME 2 FEE
consideration. If the put option is exercised, management AU FE334 & - A HARE Jh (B
considers that any excess of the exercise price over the fair B ARRDA - WiTER SR
value of Neway Entertainment Limited at the date of exercise ERERR 1T E S X Neway
of put option is considered as deemed contribution from Dr. Entertainment Limited 71T 5208
SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher to the Group. Such contribution, if HEZHAZ AL EHZEEHE A
any, will be credited to reserve. EEEGE T M AEBREL 2R 1E
ER-BEER (1WE) &5t AR
o
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. B EE
Artiste
contracts Trademark Total
BEAEN (5L #at
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT ABIT
cosT R
At 1 April 2010 and RZE—ZTF
31 March 2011 and MA—H -—T——%
31 March 2012 =A=+t—Hk
—E—_HF
=A=+—H 9,192,248 5,317,632 14,509,880
AMORTISATION e
At 1 April 2010 R-ZE—ZFWMA—H 1,723,546 - 1,723,546
Charge for the year FRLZH 2,298,062 - 2,298,062
At 31 March 2011 RZT——%F
=A=+—8H 4,021,608 - 4,021,608
Charge for the year FARLZH 2,298,062 - 2,298,062
At 31 March 2012 R-F——F
=A=+—8H 6,319,670 — 6,319,670
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2012 R-ZT—_F
=A=+—8H 2,872,578 5,317,632 8,190,210
At 31 March 2011 RZT——F
=A=+—8H 5,170,640 5,317,632 10,488,272
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HEr—F—— =F—HIFFEZE
20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Artiste contracts, which have definite useful lives, are
amortised over the contract term (4 years) on a straight-line
basis.

The trademark is considered by the management of the Group
as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected to
contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. Various studies
including product life cycle studies, market, competitive and
environmental trends, and brand extension opportunities have
been performed by management of the Group, which supports
that the trademark has no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the trademarked products or services are expected to
generate net cash flows for the Group. The trademark will
not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite.
Instead it will be tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may be impaired.

Particulars of the impairment testing of trademark are
disclosed in note 19.

For the purpose of impairment testing of artiste contracts, the
carrying amount of each artiste contract is compared with the
recoverable amount of each individual artiste. The recoverable
amount of each artiste has been determined based on a value
in use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets of respective artistes covering their
unexpired contract periods and discount rate of 22.5% (2011:
22.5%). The key assumption of the value in use calculation
of each artiste is based on the budgeted cash inflow/outflows
that the each artiste will be earned or expenses incurred
through products sold and services rendered, such estimations
are based on the past performance. No impairment on artiste
contracts was noted for both years.

20.

AN ﬂ:/ ﬁ F ( =) )
BASNEBRAEAFE  UE

ORRAHFE (AF)#H-
ERBHEEIERAERES

MAFRE WAKEERERRE
BABEREAEH A5EE
HEDHE ﬂylﬁﬁﬁﬁt BREmA
HIFR TS - 1% B RIRIREB A
Ziuuﬁ?ﬂ%ﬁ%%&”k $§%§ﬁ%?€§iﬁ%ﬁ§
%.?Eﬁ*iﬁﬂimuﬁﬁlﬁ—fﬁ:
REBR -EmEgIeEE EEH
AERFHEEREBRARIL-
N EREBFERRENREAT
BE M IRBEREITRERE -

BRI ERAFBR

E':go

AT RE193%

Wﬁkfﬁt?ﬁﬁmﬁﬁi’
—HBAGAZEEESRS —
%%AZT%@&%@%? 55—
ZEAZAIRESBEEEAER
'I' F/ffﬁﬁ EF%? 77_/%}‘”
NEB—RBEAZHMBRE ORES
—%%AZ*EﬁAﬁﬂﬁj%m
BZReREEAKR22.5% (ZF
——F:225% )2 TER-F—
BBEAZEREBEAEREZZE
ERBRE—BBAGEREE
Eom RIREREMRNES 2
Iﬁium)\/uwﬂj%ﬁw ﬁﬁﬁ%’ﬁ”ﬁ%ﬁ
TIABERIR B - RMEFET
BB A S LB EBEMRE-
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21. IHEHERE
2012 2011
—B—=fF —E——%F
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Available-for-sale AHHERERRE:
investments comprise:
Unlisted equity securities in RERBZIEET
the Republic of Korea & A & 7,760,000 =
The above unlisted equity investments represent investments in FaiIE FTRIRAEE AN —
unlisted equity securities issued by a private entity incorporated ERERBGMEANY ZAATS %
in the Republic of Korea. They are measured at cost less BOAZIELELTRAZT LR 2KE -
impairment at the end of the reporting period because the AR ATFEAESE AN E
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that KN UABARRRIEERAE LA S
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair FFEATE NEBIRERIREH
values cannot be measured reliably. RIZACA (HIBRIRE) FT=E -
22. DEPOSITS FOR INVESTMENTS 22. REF®
During the year ended 31 March 2012, an additional deposits B/\%zi: = —:EEH E—f— H
of RMB13,379,000 (approximately HK$16,301,000) was paid 7= T P

for the acquisition of 60% equity interest in j& & M F & = i
EFRBEARAR ("RBERBME"). As at 31 March 2012, the
Group had paid in aggregate RMB19,379,000 (approximately
HK$23,664,000) (2011: HK$7,140,000). )58 ZH# E is
principally engaged in the property investment in the PRC. The
completion of the acquisition is subject to the approval from
the PRC government.

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had paid RMB1,600,000
(approximately HK$1,884,000) in acquisition of 20% equity
interest in PUJI| REEMEABR AR ("HEFME"). Before
completion of this acquisition, the management considered
that the Group might not be able to exercise significant
influence on HEFE M E and thus management decided
not to proceed with the acquisition. The amount paid was
recovered from the purchaser who is in progress to acquire
other 80% interest in ZZEFS HbZ, an independent third party
to the Group.
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7,140,000 7T) - RIEFEH E £
DRP R EMERE - ZBWE
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EEERWER) | REFHES
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23.

24.

INVENTORIES AND RECORD MASTERS

23. FEREBFB%

2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
HKS$ HK$
BT BIT
Inventories: FE:

Raw materials R #F 42,446,270 48,874,483
Work in progress ERH 22,441,523 26,445,032
Finished goods BIPK i 22,011,144 19,059,795
86,898,937 94,379,310
Record masters 1R &% 3,802,096 5,024,837
90,701,033 99,404,147

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 2. BHIEEERE
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
HK$ HK$
&I BT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong &8 _E MR AZE S 839,850 =

The held-for-trading investments measured at fair value
subsequently to initial recognition, are grouped to Level 1
based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.
Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or
liabilities.

F1E B B E R RER R
TEHE REATETEE
SHREARE—E - E—HATEH
SREHRAEEREBRERD
152 BB CRIEHE) -
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BE—FT——F=A=1+—HIFFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

The Group’s credit terms on sales of printing business generally
range from 60 to 90 days. A longer period is granted to a
few customers with whom the Group has a good business
relationship and which are in sound financial condition.
The Group allows an average credit period of 45 days to its
customers of artistes management, production and distribution
of music albums. An ageing analysis of the trade receivables
net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

25.

BEZREMEWFIR B
MIERE &

AEBHRBEKEEZEERR
— % A60ZE90H - L H E AL F
ERVEEBERAVERIELT
CEFPUZARRZEEHRE - K
SEEAERE  RERIBEITZLHIE
FEBEF ZEEHR FH A45
H-&5EIWEE (BN RER
5) 2R DT IR RS AR 2 3%
EHHEZY-

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Printing operation: Ef il 3£ 75 -

0 — 30 days 0£30H 96,057,243 100,566,903
31 — 60 days 31260H 9,599,308 5,985,547
61 - 90 days 61290H 9,861,709 2,997,484
Over 90 days H#E90H 571,188 1,905,817
116,089,448 111,455,751

Music and entertainment operation: FHRNIRGEETS
0 — 45 days 0%£45H 2,763,251 4,331,212
46 — 90 days 46290H 110,090 1,640,607
91 - 180 days 912180H 16,133 25,068
181 — 365 days 1812365H - 6,774
2,889,474 6,003,661
Total trade receivables B 5 RWKKIRERR 118,978,922 117,459,412
Loan receivables JEUE 3 = 40,244,374

Deposits, prepayments and & EAFIER
other receivables H fth fE Y 5K I8 19,236,854 24,978,820
138,215,776 182,676,606
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25.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Trade receivables of approximately HK$19,206,000 (2011:
HK$11,839,000) was denominated in USD, the currencies
other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Credit limits attributable to customers are reviewed
regularly. Approximately 90% (2011: 90%) of trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired have the best credit
quality. These customers have no default of payment in the
past and have good credit rating attributable under the credit
review procedures used by the Group, including profitability,
liquidity, financial leverage and operational performance
quality of the counterparties.

The Group has a policy for allowance of bad and doubtful
debts which is based on the evaluation of collectibility and
ageing analysis of accounts and on management'’s judgement
including the credit creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each client.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$697,000
(2011: HK$3,578,000), which are past due as at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
of the trade receivable and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. The average age of these receivables is 132 days
(2011: 104 days).

25.

BEZREMEWFIR B
MERETE (&)

A8 #19,206,0008 L (=&
——%:11,839,0008 L) 2B 5
FEWGRIB AR ST RN - TETI
EEAEEERB EAEK-

AEBERREMRAELA - S5
HEBERFPZEEERRIZE
EFEEEERRE LEHRS
BTEPZEERE 490% (=
T——%:90% ) W AREH I E R
BEzESRERBEEAREREE
B %ZSEFPBEYEERE
B YR AKEMAEERE
FF(BRETZ2EBNEED RBE
T UBEREREERBEER)H
BERIFEENR-

R EE LR E IR E X
R HABRIRERE 2 AT E2
Bt LREDITARERE 2
Hig (BREEBREPZEEFNAR
BEERECER) &l 5E ©

AEEZE S RKFIET  BIEE
H 4B #)697,000/& T (—Z T ——
% :3,578,000/8 7T ) Z FEUFRIA -
ZERKRRERBESEHES
H - RSB AR BRERE
FEAREHMESRUKBZEE
BEWESALE  BEEHRED
WR ARG - REBIWEFZE
AT IR -2 S’
HZFHYRIKA132H (22 ——
F£:1048) o
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 25. EFRHEHMEWEE AN
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued) HERITS (F)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but CEHEEREZE S ERK

not impaired

H 2 Bk

2012 2011
—B-=F —E——%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Printing operation: ENl 2675
91 to 180 days 912180H 571,188 1,905,817
Music and entertainment operation: FRRIRGLEET -
46 — 90 days 46290H 110,090 1,640,607
91 — 180 days 912 180H 16,133 25,068
181 — 365 days 181=365H - 6,774
Total #Et 697,411 3,578,266
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RERBEZ2EE
2012 2011
—E—-=fF —E——%F
HK$ HK$
BT BTT
Balance at beginning of the year FH S 4,231,728 7,643,675
Impairment losses recognised on BLIE R IEHE R
receivables B EE 4,830,374 289,456
Reversal of bad debt AR M (20,069) (3,717,703)
Amounts written off as uncollectible T EEU[E] ~ I BR %8 (13,356) -
Exchange realignment bE W S 29,092 16,300
Balance at end of the year FREERR 9,057,769 4,231,728
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25.

26.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
approximately HK$5,275,000 (2011: HK$492,000) which have
been in severe financial difficulties in repaying the outstanding
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. The trade receivables past due but
not provided for as at the end of the reporting period were
either subsequently settled or no historical default of payments
was noted by the respective customers. The concentration of
credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and
unrelated. The directors believe that there is no further credit
provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful
debts.

As at 31 March 2011, there is an unsecured fixed-rate loan
receivable due from an independent third party included in
deposits, prepayments and other receivables with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$40,244,000 bearing
fixed interest rate 5.25% per annum. This loan receivable is
fully settled during the year ended 31 March 2012.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY

Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, who can exercise significant
influence over the Company, is the controlling shareholder of
the related company. The Group's credit terms to the related
company is 30 days.

25.

26.

BEZREMEWFIR B
MERETE (&)

REBEREREEEIAGRE
BB BREYBEE @R A
ESRWRE HHBPHEHNE
5,275,000 L (=& —— % :
492,000/ 7T ) o A& B I £ B 7%
LREBTFBEEMAER-

EETEZREFERESAKE
R AEBZERATRRLEES
BEEREHRAME FHEFE
WHREZEEEREEHBEEM
HE) - N EHRE & M 8
BZEHRKKIBNERZDRE
B HEEEPBELEERT
B2 FR - R EPHBRARER
ZEETRRE  WEERRZET
REER EFHEERBIRE
Bz L BABELEIMEER
ffa

RZZE——F=A=+—08" %
T FENREREMERKRIERS
HEW—Z2BIF=H2EIK
FEEMZEZR EEAENA
40,244,000/ 7T » 1% [E & F F| X
5.25%FT B - 2 ERWERE RE
2T —_H=A=+—HIHF
EEEEE-

FEW—REERTRE

A ARNBITFEEATE N ZE
ERB T AZBEAR ZIERRE
R AREBEA/THELRZEER
A30H -

Neway Group Holdings Limited F £ &£ MZERER D 7

Annual Report 2012 &3 111



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE—FT——F=A=1+—HIFFE

26. AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY
(Continued)
An ageing analysis of amount due from a related company

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period.

26.

B —REAE R RRE
(&)

AT RREREHRERZAH
2 ZRE—KBERRFALZ
Rl DT

2012 2011

—E——F —ET——F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

0 — 30 days 0%£30H 582,023 636,907
31 - 60 days 31260H 335,581 235,749
61 — 90 days 61290H 312,945 392,001
91 — 180 days 912180H 425,411 1,308,525
Over 180 days HB3E180H 953,598 2,069,366
2,609,558 4,642,548

Included in the amount due from a related company with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$2,028,000
(2011: HK$4,006,000), which are past due at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss
as the amount is subsequently settled. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances. The average age of
these receivables is 139 days (2011: 168 days).

Ageing of amount due from a related company
which are past due but not impaired

JEW —REERRIRIEF B
BRH 4218 492,028,000/ T (=&
——%: 4,006,000/ 7T ) Z 7KIA -
ZEFER SRS HHD B AR
EEVERBRESBE RARE
BRIEEGREEE - AEETE
MZEERFTETMNER - ZE5E
WA 2 FHE Rk 21398 (=F
——4%:168H) °

& B HI B R {E 2 B — XA
BEARREZRR

2012 2011
—EB-—C—fF —E——F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

31 - 60 days 31Z260H 335,581 235,749
61 — 90 days 61Z90H 312,945 392,001
91 — 180 days 91Z&180H 425,411 1,308,525
Over 180 days #B:8180H 953,598 2,069,366
Total st 2,027,535 4,005,641
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27.

28.

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Short term bank deposits, bank balances and cash comprise
cash held by the Group and bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. Bank balances and short-
term bank deposits of approximately HK$28,968,000 (2011:
HK$71,609,000), HK$7,289,000 (2011: HK$8,444,000) and
HK$752,000 (2011: HK$819,000) were denominated in USD,
RMB and EURO respectively, the currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

Further, included in the short term bank deposits, bank
balances and cash are amounts denominated in RMB of
approximately HK$151,461,000 (2011: HK$41,219,000),
which are not freely convertible into other currencies.

The bank balances and short-term bank deposits carry interest
rates with a range from 0.1% to 2.5% (2011: 0.18% to
2.1%) per annum.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 21 July 2011, BWIL signed a sale and purchase agreement
to dispose of its entire equity interest in Citicorp to an
independent third party. The principal activity of Citicorp is
investment in an associate, FEMJLEHE (as disclosed in note
18). Such transaction is finally lapsed in December 2011
because the purchaser cannot fulfil the condition in the sale
and purchase agreement before the expected completion date.
In February 2012, BWIL entered another sale and purchase
agreement with another independent third party to dispose
of entire equity interest in Citicorp at a consideration of
RMB24,480,000 (approximately HK$29,894,000). The disposal
has not been completed before 31 March 2012. The assets
and liabilities of Citicorp have been classified as a disposal
group held for sale and are separately presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

27.

28.

TRHRITER RITHER
kBE

RESRITER  RITEBRRIREE
BEAEBFFHReMNEFREA
ZEASAT ZIRITER - BED
71 #728,968,0008 70 (—Z & — —
£ : 71,609,000 7T ) * 7,289,000
WL (ZF ——4 8,444,000
T ) %752,0008 L (&2 ——
F:819,0008 7t) 2IRITEH K
RERITERDBIAET - ARK
ML BB - 2EHIEEREE
BRI EAER-

o EHASRIT IR SRITHE B K
REeBEMEEMRL151,461,000
Bt (ZZF——1%F :41,219,000/%
T0) Z ARBFIE - ZEFIEAT
ERAIMABEMER-

BITEBLEHRETERZRES
BNF01%E2.5% (ZF——
F:018%F2.1% ) FEH 8o

TER/TFFEHEZFER
EERERE

R-—ZT——F+A=-+—H BWIL
BE—BEEBEWHR M —REL
F-HTHEERRE 22 BRA
B - e EEE£BE LN &
REEMNBECREER (R
MIeE18E) cHRE A RER
TEHER BRI EK EE W E 2
FH NZBEXHIERERZE
——F+ZAKR R _E——F
“ABWILES—®2BIE=TF
FIVS—HEEHSE UHERK
BLEHBRAER REABAR
#24,480,0007T (429,894,000
BIL) cZ B ESHERER-Z
——F=ZA=+—HAIZTK =
ZEENBBEEPBEABELE
Z BEAR - WRERE B S AR R
EABILEF -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE—F——F=F=1+—HIFE

28. NON-CURRENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 28.

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

The sale proceeds are expected to exceed the carrying amount
of the relevant assets and liabilities and, accordingly, no
impairment loss has been recognised.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Citicorp as at 31
March 2012 are as follows:

PEABEHEZHER
ﬁgﬁﬁﬁ (nlﬁ)

B EFTSRIBTET B AEEE
EREBECRASE AUt S
R EEE -

BMER-_T——F=A=+—A8
ZEFEBEEEBBEAMNNT:

HK$
BT
Interests in an associate R—REE QR 2R
(classified as held for sale) (DEAFBELE) 15,903,075
Other payables and accruals Eth & 1+ 5108 K FE G R IE
(associated with assets classified (RSB ARKENECZEEER)
as held for sale) (580,739)
29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 29. ESRHMEMNRER
ACCRUALS PE 5t R IE
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payable presented AT ABEREHAR 2ZEEHH
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. 25| 7B ENFRIEERER DT o
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
0 — 30 days 0%30H 30,902,697 38,497,896
— 60 days 31260H 9,085,271 6,465,680
61 — 90 days 61290H 1,539,821 4,262,258
Over 90 days B #E90H 1,493,147 2,300,116
43,020,936 51,525,950
Accrued expenses and other payables — FE&t 2 3 I H b f& {~f FUE 35,386,384 28,579,260
78,407,320 80,105,210

The credit period ranged from 90 days to 120 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that
all payables within the credit timeframe.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

EF

29.

30.

31.

—E - F=H=1—HIFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (Continued)

Trade payables of approximately HK$4,708,000 (2011:
HK$9,797,000), HK$242,000 (2011: HK$342,000) and
HK$756,000 (2011: nil) were denominated in RMB, JPY and
USD respectively, the currencies other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities as at 31 March 2012.

BANK BORROWINGS

The bank borrowings are secured bank import loans which are
repayable within one year from the end of the reporting period
and carry at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus spread,
ranging from 1.8% t0 2.2% (2011: 1.7% to 2%) per annum.

Bank borrowings of HK$2,572,724 (2011: HK$8,623,958)
were denominated in USD, the currency other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liability (asset)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and
prior years:

Accelerated

29.

30.

31.

ESZRHMEBEAIRER
FEsTROE (&)

RZEBE——F=A=+—H A
D Bl 494,708,000 T ( Z & ——
£ :9,797,000/8 7T ) * 242,000/
T (ZF——4%F:342,000%7T)
X756,0008 T (—F——F : )
ZESERNFEBEDFINUARE-
HERETTAEMN  2EHIEM@BY
SEERCERE®-

RITEE

RITEESAERARITAOE
o ARRERREFT —FAE
B REBRTRAZFRENFERE

NF1.8%E22% (ZTE——%F:
1.7%%E2% ) TNE&T B -

BE82,572,724F L (& ——
#:8,623,958B L) 2RITEE
LAETTABEN - mIETTIIEERIE
EEREAEK

i SE B IE

ATARRERBEFERAY
FRECHBGAR (BE) RAZ
&) :

Intangible
depreciation Tax losses assets Total
MEB BT E BEER ENEE @5t
HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 April 2010 RZT-ZFMA—A 11,995,632 (300,244) 2,213,035 13,908,423
Charge (credit) to profit or loss ke (BA)AFEER
for the year 76,627 (482,470) (290,109)
At 31 March 2011 RZB—%
=A=+—H 12,111,366 (223,617) 1,730,565 13,618,314
(Credit) charge to profit or loss (BN Nk EAEERR
for the year (915,767) 62,521 (379,180) (1,232,426)
At 31 March 2012 R-B-ZF
=B=+-H 11,195,599 (161,096) 1,351,385 12,385,888

Neway Group Holdings Limited F £ & MZERER 2 7

Annual Report 2012 3% 115



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_F—_—F=—H=1—HIFE

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 31. EZEBIE (&)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated REREE R NEEHAHEE A
unused tax losses of approximately HK$49,628,000 (2011: Hw M 2 Est RS ERE L
HK$25,955,000) available to offset against future profits. 449,628,000 (- ——4F:
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of 25,955,000 ) - AE BB H
approximately HK$1,351,000 (2011: HK$1,355,000) of the BB #91,351,0008 0 (=& ——
tax losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in 11,355,000/ 1) 2 B i E 18
respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$48,277,000 (2011: BRIELERIEE E - R EELATE A
HK$24,600,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit RAHRFRE - WD gt H AT 75
streams. Included in unused tax losses of HK$11,000,000 &51848,277,0008 L (=& ——
(2011: nil) that will expire by 2017 (2011: nil). Other losses F : 24,600,000/ 7T ) R IE EFH
may be carried forward indefinitely. %&EE-°11,000,0008L (=ZF
——F:E\)2ARBABREEER
R_E—+tF(ZE——F:8&)
oy o FL b B 18 A R (R B A5 8E o
Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed RIER B ZERETR A - gL BT
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC BARIB-_ZEZNF—HA—HEE
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation BRE 7 5% Tk 2 X BB S 4N TR
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial HFL o PSS B n] 1942 1) o X B
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable NAR BB R EGERE =58 2 &
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to ClRFfE - BERRF=FE A g~ e la]
HK$7,045,000 (2011: HK$4,643,000) as the Group is able to BB O I E R AR A B SR
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences XA P7,045,0008 0 (= ——
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not F 14,643,000 ) 2 Fe by =58
reverse in the foreseeable future. YEH IR ERT TE A o
32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. A
Par value of
each ordinary Number of
share shares Share capital
BREEREE R EE R
HK$ HK$'000
BT AT
Ordinary shares EiEmk
Authorised: EFE
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011 RZZ-TFMNA-H"
and 31 March 2012 —Z——f=fA=+-HkK
“E-—£=A=1—H 0.005  100,000,000,000 500,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011 RZZ-TFMA—-R:
and 31 March 2012 —Z——f=A=t+-HkK
“E-—HE=A=1—H 0.005 10,193,545,600 50,967,728
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_F—_—F=—H=1—HIFE

33.

EXTENSION OF PUT OPTION PERIOD

On 16 June 2009, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Neway Entertainment Limited (“Neway
Entertainment”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Neway Entertainment Group”) from Neway Enterprise
Holdings Limited (“Neway Enterprise”). At the same time, Dr.
SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, who controlled Neway Enterprise
prior to the Group's acquisition, granted a put option (“Put
Option”) to the Group, exercisable at any time from the
completion of the acquisition (“Completion”) to 1 July 2011
to require Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher to buy back the
entire equity interest in Neway Entertainment Group at a
consideration of HK$65,000,000 and any investment cost
contributed by the Group after the Completion. On 29 June
2011, Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, agreed to extend the Put
Option period to 1 July 2012. All other terms of the Put Option
remained unchanged.

The fair value of the Put Option has been re-measured on the
date of extension using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
at HK$14,222,018. The fair value of the Put Option upon the
extension of the Put Option period is considered as a deemed
contribution from the shareholder and is credited to reserve.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair
value of Put Option.

HK$63,039,000
HK$65,000,000

Share price (Note i)
Exercise price

Expected life of options 1 year
Expected volatility (Note i;) 50.3%
Expected dividend yield 1.91%
Risk free rate 0.14%

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input
of highly subjective assumption, including the volatility of
share price. The changes in subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Notes:

(i) The share price is the equity value of Neway Entertainment,
which is determined based on the future discounted cashflow
of Neway Entertainment.

(ii) The expected volatility of the Put Option based on the
historical daily share price movements of a set of comparable
companies over a historical period of 1 year.

33.

ERFEHENRD

RZZEZAFAA+ B &&E
HNeway Enterprise Holdings
Limited ([Neway Enterprise | ) Uz
fENeway Entertainment Limited
([Neway Entertainment ) &
HWWB A Aa (8 I[Neway
Entertainmentss & | ) & 30 Ix #& -
[A] — BSF ] - 7S £ B 3 1T W BB AT
7 #iNeway Enterprise 2 & 75 4 18
TRAREERTRGEE ([0
HiRE]) - AR UBE T (588K )
E-T——F+tA—BHEAE
Al BF AT - ESRER B LA
+ 165,000,000 7t B Bl Neway
Entertainmentfs & 2 3 3% 1 K 7
TEEAREBEERERRN R
T——FXNA-+NB BEES
TREKRGHAEAFEERE
T——_F+tA—H -RALHEMB
H MR AEFFTE -

R A FEEREREAR
FREHAREEEXNENTE
#514,222,01878 7T © R HAE R R
hEEREREZ 2 A FEER
BREZRIEER - Wit ARHE -

DA T B3R 73 P LA B84 RROH SR B 2
AFfE:

W& (fati) 63,039,000/ 7T
171 E 65,000,000/ 7T
T8 HAE M 4F AR 14

B E (#ati) 50.3%

TBHkR S = 1.91%

42 [ Bz 1) 0.14%

EHHRETERANERBWASE
FEREBF BERERE  XEH
ABZEFINEATERNFER
e

HaE -

(i) % (& ANeway Entertainment %
WE(E{E » J9¥ZNeway Entertainment
ZAFBERENEMET

(i) Roh ERRE 2 TEEDR IR T A — 4 AT &
ERARBE—FiREFERES
B AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE—FT——F=A=1+—HIFFE

34. LEASE COMMITMENTS 34. HEAE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBEBHR REBRWEZT
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- TR EHERENZ R RFRK
cancellable operating leases in respect of premises which fall FA & Fx T8 AKE R LA T BA RS B BA 4
due as follows: i :
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
HK$ HK$
& TT BT
Within one year —F K 12,829,911 11,499,795
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEEFRFNA
(BEEEMF) 43,082,574 32,387,286
Over five years HBRF 50,102,271 56,509,735
106,014,756 100,396,816
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the ST E TR A E B A A
Group for factory premises and staff quarters in the PRC. Bl ITHMOENEIESENZ
Leases for factory premises and staff quarters are negotiated MHe - IRMERBEIBES M
for terms of 1 to 50 years. Rentals are fixed for 1 to 50 years. EMETEAIZ0FINE -HERN
1E505F NEE T o
35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EAREE
2012 2011
—EF-=F —F——%
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Capital expenditure contracted for but FtA R &BE I QEXRE

not provided in the consolidated RE MM IER
financial statements in respect of: 7 ERAL
— acquisition of property, —WIEME  BRE R
plant and equipment B 10,389,275 25,268,931
— prepaid lease payments in the PRC  ~ —RAFREZENEE
KIA 12,838,035 11,421,514

23,227,310 36,690,445
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BEZFZF=HA=+—HIFE

36.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme (“ORSO Scheme”) for certain qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the ORSO Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of the trustee. Contributions to the ORSO Scheme are at rates
specified in the rules of the ORSO Scheme. Where there are
employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting in full
in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

With effect from 1 December, 2000, the Group has also joined
a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for its
employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at
rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions. Except for voluntary contribution, no forfeited
contribution under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

The retirement benefits schemes contributions arising from
the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income represent
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes.

36.

3R K8 R ET

AEBAEEEZAETAERE
B 17 E B R K8 A 5 2
([ORSOET#l]) - ORSOsT &I 2 &
EREIAZSIzESEE  BEX
EBZEEDHAERIE - ORSO:TE|
Z R THIZORSOH &8l 2 R BIFTET
BAZ LG E o MR B A 2 8
S AR B ORSOEH &l - REE
FEVEH 2 L3R AT AR Uk 2 3k i
B e

ZTEETF+_A—HE X
SETER/EBREREES MR
HRBEeE ([RESE]) -
BETEERERFELTES
RPN R ME AT FTEE
2 - REeF S EERE
MERARGZEZSRKE  BHAK
Bz EEDFRE - RIFWESET
g EXMHEEBSAZAAIFIH
Z LR A BE S EME L K-
AEERBERAS T 2E—]
ERELREFL 2K R B R
WS BB R ERET & 208
WS AT B AR D SR R AR 2

ke

RirE 2 EE R AR Z ORSO
B MR 58T 2 RIKEF
FTEME R ThiE RS BIRZ FATE
RAGTHACEERERESEL 2

e
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36.

37.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
(Continued)

For the retirement benefits of the Group’s qualifying
employees in the PRC, the Group has participated in the
retirement benefits scheme operated by the local municipal
government of Shenzhen. The Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of their payroll costs to the scheme to
fund the benefits. The employees are entitled to retirement
pension calculated with reference to their basic salaries on
retirement and their length of services in accordance with
the relevant government regulations. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the scheme is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the scheme. Contributions to
the scheme are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the scheme.

At 31 March 2012 and 2011, there were no significant
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees leaving
the schemes before they are fully vested in the contributions
and which are available to reduce the contributions payable by
the Group in the future.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)  Apart from the amount due from a related company as
disclosed in note 26 and the transaction as detailed in
note 33, during the year, the Group has entered into
significant transactions between related parties and
subsidiaries of the Company as follows:

36.

37.

RINERETE (&)

ERAEHEETEZAERESR
ZIRRAERNTE - AEBEE 208
AR TT BT B IR 2 R KR A
A8l - NEBARBRIE B F K
RzX—BDHRTSER A
REMEfES - BEAZARE
1 B U AR B H2 SR AR RS 2 B R 3
& MR F HIE B 2 RIREF] -
AEER &2 E—BERR
BIEHFTEIRE(E L 2 15K - A%
ArEMEH 2 KRG RIBEZFEZ
A RS ERS 2EWAR
AR °

R-E——ER_FE——%=H
=+—H - BEREERE2HIE
MRANR Kz EaT 8l 8 - ]
FA LA D AN 52 B 2 oK 2R FE S Atk 3K
ZERZIMHFR -

BEEAELXRS

(a) FREIFE26PT B BE B — K
78 3% X 7 RIE DA e B £33
Az R BN FAREE
BETREALEARAN

B RRET TIZHEEAR

5
2012 2011
—E--F —ET——%F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Promotion service fee income  HEERISEUA (H17Ei)

(Note i) 450,270 5,109,334
Licensed fee income (Note /) FEEr B (Hati) 2,160,000 1,080,000
Sales of goods (Note /) HEEMm(HaE) 458,488 11,800
Office rental expenses (Note i) P AZEFM SR (A7:i) 360,000 360,000
Premises rental expenses mEBREFRX (Hatii)

(Note ir) 906,665 840,000
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

Notes:

(i) The transactions were carried out with Neway Karaoke
Box Limited and its subsidiaries which are controlled
by Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher.

(ii) The transaction was carried out with another related
company, which are controlled by the spouse and sons
of Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of

37. BEALRS (&)
(@ (&)
HaE
(i) RERS T EBEEEGTE
+# %) ZNeway Karaoke

Box Limited S £ I B A 7]
HEITo

(i)  HEXRSHEmEERE
T RBRATEHZS

—REEA TR

(b) EEEEABZHRM
NTREERAMERER

key management during the year was as follows: AERAFEE 2B :
2012 2011
—E—CfF —E——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Short-term benefits 2 HE A 9,039,355 8,433,970
Post-employment benefits BB 2 12 1 204,775 192,667
9,244,130 8,626,637
The remuneration of directors and key executives is BEENFTEITHAE Z2B®
determined by the remuneration committee having TIBEFME & 2R ERI AL
regard to the performance of individuals and market ZRIEBEMSBEET -

trends.
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38.

39.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes bank borrowings disclosed in note 30, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on
a continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital and
the risk associated with the capital. The Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues, repurchase
of shares and the issue of new debt or the redemption of the
existing debt.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2012, the purchase consideration of property,
plant and equipment amounting to HK$5,167,824 (2011:
HK$5,275,897) was remained unsettled and included in other
payables and accruals.
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38.

39.

EXERER

AEEEREEARAURRAZHE
BETRERBEFELE  FARFES
MR RMERLED T B8
EE A AR -

AEE 2 BEARRERER (B
AE30FTIREE 2 RITIEE IR EA
ERBEELEE) RARBER AR
hiEmD (BREBRTRAREE)
A -

AEEZERERBERNEAR
B EELEHRBREANARE
REH R 2 BB o RE B E B %
TTHT A R B A fn e # IR A B
BRRBEERFHEHEBEEAR
e

AEEBEREEFFEM
[A] °
TEFRAERF

RZE——F=H=+—8H"
ME - BMELAREZBEENRE
5,167,824 L (=& — —F:
5,275,897 L) AR &E 5T A
H b T I R BT FIE
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For the year ended 31 March 2012

B2 T ——F=HA=+—HIFE
40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. 74 8] Z B AR R 3Rk
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the j&f&ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁiﬁi&%ﬁéi&%,ﬁﬂ%
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: ZERBE:
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR Z&RE 42,671,951 42,282,451
Amount due from ultimate holding JFE W B AR 12 IR R R R IE
company 9,100 9,100
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSHS B 1 B 5k E 225,873,876 259,475,883
Loan to a subsidiary BT —XWBRRER 326,590,901 273,000,382
Tax recoverable AJ Ug [B] £ IR - 257,531
Short-term bank deposits EHRITER 7,257,477 93,975,682
Other payables H h & < 518 (774,344) (746,565)
Net assets BEFE 601,628,961 668,254,464
Share capital AR 50,967,728 50,967,728
Reserves fé e 550,661,233 617,286,736
Total equity e HAEE 601,628,961 668,254,464
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41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 41.

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 March
2012 and 31 March 2011.

Loy PN

RKABIMBRAANR _TE—_F=
A=+—HAk-_ZE——%=H

=+—A2HE-

Effective percentage

Place of Paid up issued/  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ registered  registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
KARFHFE#T
S BrERT/ BE/ERER
WEAR AR i it B 1 AR A EREIH TEER
2012 2011
—E--§ —T——F
% %
Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited BVI HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited RERTES 10,0007 70 3@ A% 100 100 REZR
Chung Tai Printing Company Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Limited HK$500,000
deferred non-voting
FARERIBRA A B 1,000/ 7T & 8% 100 100 REZR
500,000 ¢
ERZRERITR
The Greatime Printing (Shenzhen) The PRC HK$12,000,000 100 100  Label and offset
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) registered capital printing
HRER CRYN) BR AR g 12,000,000 70 100 100 & RAENR
(Hiiz1) A MER
mREIR (B&) AR A The PRC HK$72,000,000 100 100 Inactive
(Note 1) registered capital
RREIR (B&) AR A A i 72,000,000 7C 100 100 EEEK
(K1) A MER
HRER O8&) BR AR The PRC HK$10,000,000 100 100 Inactive
(Note 1) registered capital
HARER (FE)BRAR i 10,000,000 70 100 100 EEEHR
(Hiit1) & A
HHEAR CRINBRAF The PRC HK$20,000,000 100 N/A  Label and offset
(Note 1) registered capital printing
SR CRIN)BRAR HE 20,000,000/ 7T 1000  TER BRERFHR
(Hiit1) & A

Neway Group Holdings Limited ff 2 £ MZ R G R D 7
124 Annual Report 2012 &%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2012

EF

41.

—E - F=H=1—HIFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

41.

BB A Bz 515 (&)

Effective percentage

Place of Paid up issued/  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ registered  registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
ANARBE R
il e BregT/ BRA/EMER
WEARARE ot i it B AR A EREIL TEXH
2012 201
—2--f —T——F
% %
IBE#HREHA R ARAT The PRC RMB1,000,000 100 N/A  Investment holding
(Note 1) registered capital
IRE R &% A CRYN) BRATF e AR #1,000,0007T 100 TER REEK
(Hi#t1) A MER
AT AREAAERAR The PRC RMB2,000,000 100 N/A  Investment holding
(Note 2) registered capital
RYmhAREFATRRDA hE AR #2,000,0007T 1000  TER REERK
(Hiit2) A MER
BLUTERREERARDA The PRC RMB20,000,000 100¢ N/A  Inactive
(Note 3) registered capital
BLUTERREERARDA hE AR #20,000,0007 1000 TEA EEER
(H1it3) &R
Chung Tai Printing (China) Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100  Label and offset
Company Limited HK$10,000 printing
deferred non-voting
RARER (FE)BERAF Bk 1,000 T EBR 100 100 BERAXDF
10,000/ 7T
BRFEELR
The Greatime Offset Printing Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
Company Limited HK$1,000,000
deferred non-voting
BARAAEIRIAR DA B 1,000 T EBR 100 100 EEXH

1,000,000/ 70
BRFRELR
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE—FT——F=A=1+—HIFFE

41.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

41.

BB 2 Bz 515 (4&)

Effective percentage

Place of Paid up issued/  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ registered  registered capital held

Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities

AN ARBE R
SR BRERST/ Bx,/ZHER
WELAEE ot i it B AR EREIL TEXRH

2012 20M
“2--f —T——F
% %

Delight Source Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 ordinary 100 100  Trading of
advertising
materials

EMBERAT BE 200,000 T EBR 100 100 EEEEYH

Profit Link Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100 100  Property investment

HK$2 deferred
non-voting
RAREEERBRAT Bk 100E T & B 100 100 MERE
2B LERTE
EIER
Chung Tai Investment & Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Development Co. Limited
PAREERBRDA BE 1BTERKR 100 100 HEER
Chung Tai Management Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
HK$2 deferred
non-voting
PAEEARAA it 10078 7T &AM 100 100 EEXH
2B LERTE
R
Chung Tai Packaging Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100  Inactive
PABRERAR Bk 10,000/ T & R 100 100 EEXH
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REMBHRRHE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE _F—_—F=—H=1—HIFE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41. MEBELABIZ2H1E (&)

Effective percentage

Place of Paid up issued/  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ registered  registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
AN ARBE R
SR BRERST/ Bx,/ZHER
WELAEE ot i it B AR EREIL TEXRH
2012 20M
“2--f —T——F
% %
Brilliant Wise International Limited BVI US$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Brilliant Wise International Limited KERAEE 1ETERR 100 100 REZER
Gain Capital International Limited BVI US$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Gain Capital International Limited EERL#HS 1RTEBR 100 100 HEER
General Star Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100  Investment in TV
series production
BEEXARAA BE 1BTERK 100 100 BREEBIHERE
Neway Entertainment Limited BVI US$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Neway Entertainment Limited HERTES 12T ERR 100 100 REZR
Star Entertainment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100  Inactive
ERZBRAF BE BT ERR 100 100 EEXH
Star Entertainment (Universe) Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Provision of artists
Limited management and
music licensing
services and sales
of music albums
ERZ (RT)BRAT BE BT ERR 100 100 REBAEER
B RRRE BRS K
HESRER
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REMBHRRHE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE—FT——F=A=1+—HIFFE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41. MBAT Z2=1E (&)

Effective percentage

Place of Paid up issued/  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ registered  registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
AN ARBE R
SR BRERST/ Bx,/ZHER
WELAEE ot i it B AR EREIL TEXRH
2012 20M
“2--f —T——F
% %
Neway Star Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100  Provision of
music licensing
services, sales
of music albums
and investment
holding
FBEREIBRERDA Bk 10,000/ 0 & R 100 100 HREESLRER
HETREBR R
REER
Sansible Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
KERARAT Bk 10,0008 T & &K 100 100 EEXH
Neway Star Pictures Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100  Inactive
MERPERMEERAR BE 10,000/ 70 & BAR 100 100 EEXH
Neway Star Music Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
MEREERUEERAT] Bk 10,000/ L & R 100 100 EEXH
Neway Star Artiste Management Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Provision of artists
Limited management
services
HRREEERARAA B 10,0008 70 & @R 100 100 RUEBAEERS
SmartMax International Limited BVI US$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
SmartMax International Limited EBREAHS 1ETERR 100 100 REZER
Citicorp Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
RRERARAF BA 1B EBR 100 100 REZR
Showtimes (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
RBER (EM)BRAR it 1BTERK 100 100 EEXHK
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REMBHRRHE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE—FT——F=A=1+—HIFFE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41. B R 2715 (&)

Effective percentage

Place of Paid up issued/  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ registered  registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
AN ARBE R
SR BRERST/ Bx,/ZHER
WELAEE ot i it B AR EREIL TEXRH
2012 20M
“2--f —T——F
% %
Dream Class Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
Dream Class Limited RBELES 50,0003 7T &AM 100 100 EEXH
Power Rank International Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Power Rank International Limited EERL#HS 50,0003 7T & i i 100 100 HEER
Hero Chance Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Hero Chance Limited RERAEES 50,0003 7T &AM 100 100 REZER
Victor Glory Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Victor Glory Limited EERLHS 50,0003 7T & i i 100 100 REER
Golden Richland Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100  Inactive
EEERAT BB 10,0008 7T & B 100 100 EEXH
Nation Profit Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
MRBRAT 6 10,000/ 0 & B 100 100 REZR
Star Rank Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Star Rank Limited RERAEES 50,0003 7T &AM 100 100 REZER
Max Synergy Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100  Inactive
BRERAT BA 10,000/ T & B 100 100 EEXH
Selection Goal Limited BVI US$1 ordinary 100¢ N/A  Investment holding
Selection Goal Limited EBREAHS 1ETERR 100 TER  REER
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MEMBHRRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE_F—_—F=—H=1—HIFE

41. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41. MEBLABZ2H1E (&)

Effective percentage

Place of Paid up issued/  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ registered  registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
ANARBERT
SR BrEe®RT/ Bx,/EHER
WELARAEE it i3t B AR EREIL FEER
2012 201
—2--Ff —T——F%
% %
Troupe Magnesium Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 65 N/A  Investment in drama
Limited show
ERBEHBRAA BE 10,0008 70 & B AR 65* TER BBIRE
Neway Group Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100¢ N/A  Inactive
RERRAERAA BB 1AL E R 100* TER LEXRE
Neway Investments Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100* N/A Inactive
Holdings Limited
REREZERBRAR B BT ERR 100 TER EERK
Kingbay Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100¢ N/A  Securities trading
FEREARAA it BT ERK 100 TER EBEES
Galaxy Way Enterprise Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100¢ N/A  Investment holding
Galaxy Way Enterprise Limited EBRELHS 50,0003 7T & i i 100 THEE REER
Fruitful Global Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100¢ N/A  Inactive
LEERARAR &t 1BTERK 100 TER EERH
& These subsidiaries are newly incorporated during year ended 5 ZEWNB R IREE —FE——4F
31 March 2012. =A=+—HIEFRAMAL
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MEMBHRRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE T ——F=A=1+—HIFFE

41.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(1) These subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises in the
PRC.

(2) This subsidiary is domestic enterprise with limited liabilities

established in the PRC. The subsidiary is indirectly held by the
Company through the contractual arrangement by 2<% & and
#l5k 8 who hold the interest in the subsidiary of 50% and
50% respectively.

(3) This subsidiary is domestic enterprise with limited liabilities
established in the PRC. The subsidiary is indirectly held by the
Company through the contractual arrangement by = &% and
FR#% % who hold the interest in the subsidiary of 50% and
50% respectively.

All operations are carried out in Hong Kong and the PRC.

With the exception of Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited,
Brilliant Wise International Limited, Gain Capital International
Limited, SmartMax International Limited, Dream Class Limited
and Galaxy Way Enterprise Limited which are directly owned
by the Company, all other subsidiaries are indirectly owned by
the Company.

The deferred non-voting shares, which are not held by the
Group, practically carry no rights to dividends nor to receive
notice of nor to attend or vote at any general meeting of the
relevant companies or to participate in any distribution on
winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

41.

MELRzFE (&)
HisE
() BEMEAADFEZAEBEL

) ZMHBARTIRPBEKRYL 2 NER
REMEDE - ZMERRHARA
BRFERHRBKRALZANE
HRERE TR RBKERD 5
Fr B %I B A RI50% M & ©

3) ZMBARTIRPBRKRIL 2 NER
REMEDRE - ZHERRHARA
BREEERRHRILZEHNER
HRERFE BREERRB RO
Fr B % T B A RI50% # & ©

FIBERBHANEERTBEET

Chung Tai Printing Holdings
Limited Brilliant Wise
International Limited~Gain Capital
International Limited* SmartMax
International LimitedDream Class
Limited &2 Galaxy Way Enterprise
LimitedE AN AR EEZ#HEE -FTH
H M E A A B4R QR EER
ﬁ o

BEREZRELER (FRAKER
BI)ZHBANEE L BRERERE
REREBRARZERRAGEE
FHFEARRAEHNE LR
B RRNBERFZ2EERMDIK-

B BB ]I R AR B A (T B
BMEEFARREREZERHES-
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Financial Summary

M=

RESULTS E
For the year ended 31 March,
BZEZ=A=1+—HILEE
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—EEN\F ZTTLF —FT-TF —F——F ¥ —F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FET
Revenue & 728,563 691,495 569,016 678,246 660,687
(Loss) profit before BrAAT (E18)
taxation il 41,184 (16,016) 63,166 54,552 (54,862)
Taxation Bi1E (2,164) (1,920) (2,953) (7,667) (1,253)
(Loss) profit for the year  ZR4F (1) % A 39,020 (17,936) 60,213 46,885 (56,115)
Attributable to: FEAG
Equity holders of (SYNSIE 3
the parent BAEA 39,020 (17,936) 60,213 46,885 (55,938)
Non-controlling interests  FE3% A #E S - - - = (177)
39,020 (17,936) 60,213 46,885 (56,115)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 March,
R=B=+—H
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“EEN\E —TTRNEF —FT-FTF —E——F =B--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T T FHET
Total assets BEERE 1,015,703 817,001 896,267 956,802 883,671
Total liabilities BEBRE 236,577 62,511 87,562 105,926 97,428
Total equity G g 779,126 754,490 808,705 850,876 786,243
Equity attributable to PAN/NEIE7 Z SN
owners of the Company  JE{h#E# 779,126 754,490 808,705 850,876 786,420
Non-controlling interests  FF#% A% #E 25 - - - = (177)
779,126 754,490 808,705 850,876 786,243
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Neway Group Holdings Limited
FESEZEERBRAT

Chung Tai Printing Group Building,11 Yip Cheong Street,
On Lok Tsuen, Fanling, N.T., H.K.
BENELTETENEGHNFPRODRIEERE

Tel E5%: (852) 26696111  Fax {&H.: (852) 2677 6556
Website #11t: www.newaygroup.com.hk
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